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This announcement, for which the Directors collectively and individually accept full
responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the GEM Listing Rules for the
purpose of giving information with regard to the Company. The Directors, having made all
reasonable enquiries, confirm that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information
contained in this announcement is accurate and complete in all material respects and not
misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this announcement misleading.

This announcement will remain on the “Latest Listed Company Information” page of the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited’s website www.hkexnews.hk for at least seven days
from the date of its publication. This announcement will also be published on the Company’s
website at www.wingfunggroup.com.



CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED
(THE “STOCK EXCHANGE")

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to accommodate small and mid-sized companies to which
a higher investment risk may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock Exchange. Prospective
investors should be aware of the potential risks of investing in such companies and should make the decision
to invest only after due and careful consideration.

Given that the companies listed on GEM are generally small and mid-sized companies, there is a risk that
securities traded on GEM may be more susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on the
Main Board and no assurance is given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded on GEM.

Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited take no responsibility for
the contents of this report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness and expressly disclaim any liability
whatsoever for any loss howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part of the contents of this report.

This report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) collectively and
individually accept full responsibility, includes particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the Listing of
Securities on GEM of the Stock Exchange (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for the purpose of giving information with regard to
the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the “Group”). The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm
that to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained in this report is accurate and complete in all
material respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other matters the omission of which would make
any statement herein or this report misleading.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board of Directors (the “Board”) of the Company, |
hereby present the audited financial statements of the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 (the “Relevant Period”).

REVIEW AND RESULTS

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the
provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of mechanical
ventilation and air-conditioning (“MVAC") system for various types
of private and public building projects including infrastructural,
commercial and residential building projects in Hong Kong and
Macau.

With the relaxation of anti-pandemic measures and the re-opening
of borders between Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China in early
2023, we have witnessed a gradual resumption in economic and
social activities in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group sailed through
a turbulent 2022 marked by sporadic outbreak of COVID-19 cases
and stringent social distancing measures in the beginning of 2022,
followed by challenges such as surging interest rates, inflation and
soaring raw materials and energy costs. Competition within the
industry sector has remained fierce. Despite the challenges, the
Group has remained resilient and has been exploring cooperation
with new customers and optimising resource utilisation and
efficiencies in order to maximise return to our shareholders.

The total revenue of the Group increased by approximately HK$9.2
million or 5.3% from approximately HK$174.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$184.0 million for the
Relevant Period. Gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$0.5
million for the Relevant Period while gross loss of the Group was
approximately HK$7.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, while the pandemic situation has subsided and the
governments in Hong Kong and Macau have lifted the COVID-19
pandemic prevention and control measures, economic uncertainties,
inflation and interest rate hike set to weigh on business sentiment
and put pressure on the local economy and the construction
industry in the near term. The financial results of the Group for
the year ending 2023 may potentially be affected as a result of the
aforementioned uncertainties. Nonetheless, the Group will stay
vigilant and continue to drive sustainable growth by constantly
reviewing its business and tendering strategies and enhancing its
operational efficiency, with a view to creating long-term value to
shareholders and investors of the Company.

A NOTE OF APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | wish to take this opportunity to express
my deep gratitude to our Shareholders, clients, business partners,
suppliers and subcontractors for their continuous support. |
would also like to express our sincere appreciation to the Group’s
management and staff for their commitment, contribution and
dedication throughout the years.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Chung Chi Keung
Chairman and Executive Director

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Business Review and Outlook

The Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system
for various types of private and public building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in Hong
Kong and Macau.

With the relaxation of anti-pandemic measures and the re-opening
of borders between Hong Kong, Macau and Mainland China in early
2023, we have witnessed a gradual resumption in economic and
social activities in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group sailed through
a turbulent 2022 marked by sporadic outbreak of COVID-19 cases
and stringent social distancing measures in the beginning of 2022,
followed by challenges such as surging interest rates, inflation and
soaring raw materials and energy costs. Competition within the
industry sector has remained fierce. Despite the challenges, the
Group has remained resilient and has been exploring cooperation
with new customers and optimising resource utilisation and
efficiencies in order to maximise return to our shareholders.

During the Relevant Period, the Group recorded a loss of
approximately HK$11.2 million as compared to a loss of
approximately HK$21.8 million in the corresponding period in 2021.
The reduction in loss is mainly attributable to (i) improved profit
margin due to increase in revenue derived from the projects in Macau
which generate higher gross profit margin generally; and (ii) the
recognition of one-off COVID-19 relief and subsidies of approximately
HK$5.6 million from the Hong Kong and Macau governments during
the Relevant Period. The revenue generated from our operations in
Hong Kong and Macau accounted for approximately 78.6% (2021:
approximately 93.3%) and 21.4% (2021: approximately 6.7%) of
our total revenue during the Relevant Period respectively.

Despite easing of the COVID-19 pandemic, it is expected that delay
in completions of projects and in the tendering process, fierce
competition in tenders from competitors with aggressive pricing
strategies, stringent budget from customers as well as rising material
costs, subcontracting charges and labour costs will continue to
impact the operations and financial performance of the Group in
2023.
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Looking ahead, while the pandemic situation has subsided and the
governments in Hong Kong and Macau have lifted the COVID-19
pandemic prevention and control measures, economic uncertainties,
inflation and interest rate hike set to weigh on business sentiment
and put pressure on the local economy and the construction industry
in the near term. The financial results of the Group for the year
ending 31 December 2023 may potentially be affected as a result
of the aforementioned uncertainties. The Group will continue to
stay vigilant and drive sustainable growth by constantly reviewing
its business and tendering strategies and enhancing its operational
efficiency and financial performance. At the same time, the Group
will proactively pursue new opportunities to create new revenue
streams and enhance shareholder value.

Financial Review
Revenue

Our revenue increased by approximately HK$9.2 million, from
approximately HK$174.8 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$184.0 million for the Relevant Period,
representing an increase of approximately 5.3%. In particular, while
the Group recorded (i) an increase in revenue of approximately HK$4.1
million from new projects (in particular two new projects located
at Taipa in Macau which collectively contributed to an increase in
revenue of approximately HK$3.6 million); and (ii) an increase in
revenue of approximately HK$114.7 million due to the increase in
the amount of work under our existing projects as compared with
the year ended 31 December 2021 (in particular, the projects located
at Kai Tak and Taipa in Macau), the aforesaid increments were offset
by (i) a decrease in revenue of approximately HK$8.4 million resulting
from the completion of certain projects during the Relevant Period;
and (i) a decrease in revenue of approximately HK$101.2 million due
to the decrease in the amount of work under our existing projects
as compared with the year ended 31 December 2021 (in particular,
a project located at Tai Wai and a project located at Chek Lap Kok
together accounted for a decrease in revenue of approximately
HK$77.8 million).
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Cost of Sales

Our cost of sales remained relatively stable at approximately
HK$183.5 million for the Relevant Period (2021: approximately
HK$182.0 million).

Gross Profit/Loss and Gross Profit/Loss Margin

Gross profit of the Group was approximately HK$0.5 million for the
Relevant Period while gross loss of the Group was approximately
HK$7.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The change
was mainly driven by the increase in revenue for the Relevant Period
as discussed above.

The overall gross profit margin was approximately 0.3% for
the Relevant Period while gross loss margin of the Group was
approximately 4.1% for the year ended 31 December 2021. Such
turnaround was primarily attributable to (i) the increase in revenue
as mentioned above, and (ii) the increase in revenue derived from
projects in Macau which generally enjoy a relatively higher gross
profit margin as compared to projects in Hong Kong for the Relevant
Period.

Administrative Expenses

Our administrative expenses increased by approximately HK$1.1
million, or approximately 6.5%, from approximately HK$16.8 million
for the year ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$17.9
million for the Relevant Period, mainly attributable to the increase in
the employee benefit expenses.
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Expenses in Relation to the Transfer of Listing

During the year ended 31 December 2021, our Group recognised
non-recurring professional service fees of approximately HK$0.4
million in connection with the proposal for the transfer of listing
from GEM to the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, which was
discontinued in May 2021. No such expenses were recognised for the
Relevant Period.

Income Tax Credit

Our income tax credit decreased by approximately HK$0.5 million
from approximately HK$3.1 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$2.6 million for the Relevant Period. Such
change was primarily attributable to the decrease in the loss before
tax for the Relevant Period as compared with the corresponding
period in 2021.

Loss for the Year

As a result of the foregoing, our loss decreased by approximately
HK$10.6 million from approximately HK$21.8 million for the year
ended 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$11.2 million for the
Relevant Period.

Liquidity and Financial Resources

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had total assets of approximately
HK$186.2 million (2021: approximately HK$188.1 million), which
is financed by total liabilities and shareholders’ equity (comprising
share capital and reserves) of approximately HK$84.6 million (2021:
approximately HK$75.0 million) and approximately HK$101.6 million
(2021: approximately HK$113.1 million), respectively.

The total interest-bearing borrowings (including bank borrowings
and bank overdrafts) of the Group increased from approximately
HK$26.8 million as at 31 December 2021 to approximately HK$38.4
million as at 31 December 2022. Current ratio decreased from 2.5
times as at 31 December 2021 to approximately 2.1 times as at 31
December 2022.
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The Group’s borrowing and bank balances are mainly denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and there was no significant exposure to foreign
exchange rate fluctuations during the year.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated by dividing the total
interest-bearing borrowings and lease liabilities by total equity
at the year-end date, increased from approximately 24.5% as at
31 December 2021 to approximately 37.9% as at 31 December
2022, primarily due to (i) the increase in the total interest-bearing
borrowings; and (ii) the decrease in total equity resulting from the
decrease in retained earnings attributable to recording a net loss for
the Relevant Period.

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and business
prospects may be affected by a number of risks and uncertainties
directly or indirectly pertaining to the Group's businesses. The
management of the Company considers that the following are the
principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group:

(i) the outbreak of any pandemic such as COVID-19 pandemic
could adversely affect the Group’s business operations and
financial performance by potentially causing suspension of
works, delay in delivery of construction materials, increase
in material and logistics costs and other interruption to the
operation of the Group;

(i) the business of the Group relies on successful tenders and any
failure of the Group to secure tender contracts would affect
sustainability of our revenue streams and adversely affect the
operations and financial results of the Group;

(i) erroneous or inaccurate estimation of project duration and
the costs involved for the determination of tender price may
adversely affect the profitability and financial performance of
the Group;

(iv)  cost overrun, any delay or defects of the works of the suppliers
and subcontractors of the Group would adversely affect its
operations and financial results;

(v)  reliance on major customers for a significant portion of the
Group’s revenue expose the Group to credit and liquidity risks
of such major customers which has impact on the Group’s cash
flow and financial conditions; and
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(vi) reliance on key management for the Group's operation may
subject the Group to material adverse effect on business
operation and profitability in case of departure of members
of the key management team without timely and appropriate
replacement.

Please also refer to note 3 to the consolidated financial statements in
this annual report for details of the financial risks faced by the Group
and the relevant risk management measures.

Relationship with customers, suppliers, subcontractors and
employees

Customers

The Group’'s customers mainly include main contractors and
subcontractors of various types of building projects including
infrastructural, commercial and residential building projects in Hong
Kong and Macau. The Group has maintained business relationship
with the top customers for a period ranging from approximately 1
year to over 10 years. The Directors believe the Group has established
good relationship with its customers and receives invitations from the
repeat customers to submit tenders from time to time.

Suppliers and Subcontractors

During the Relevant Period, the suppliers and subcontractors of
the Group included (i) suppliers of air conditioning equipment
and materials; (ii) suppliers of processing services on the Group’s
equipment and materials; (iii) machinery rental service providers; and
(iv) subcontractors engaged by the Group to perform the site works.
The Group engaged the suppliers and subcontractors on a regular
basis.

The Group maintains an internal list of approved suppliers and
subcontractors. The Group selects suppliers based on a number
of factors such as their prices, quality of the goods and services
supplied, past performances and timeliness of delivery. While
engaging subcontractors, the Group selects the subcontractors
for a project by taking into account their availability of resources
and manpower, experience, track record, service quality, safety
performance, timeliness of delivery, reputation and fee quotations.

The Group did not encounter any material difficulty in sourcing
equipment and materials and services from our suppliers or assigning
subcontractors during the Relevant Period.
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Employees

The Group respects its employees and endeavours to provide
better working conditions for its employees. We offer competitive
remuneration and a fair, flexible and transparent recruitment process
to attract and retain talents and promotes equal opportunities among
employees. Further details can also be found in section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this annual
report.

Capital Structure

The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were successfully listed
on GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February 2018 (the “Listing”).
Immediately upon Listing, the total issued share capital of the
Company was HK$5,740,000 divided into 574,000,000 Shares of par
value of HK$0.01 each.

On 19 November 2021, 75,000,000 shares of par value HK$0.01
each of the Company were issued at a price of HK$0.144 by
way of placing under general mandate (the “Placing”). For
further information in relation to the Placing, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 22 October 2021, 12
November 2021 and 19 November 2021.

On 3 December 2021, the Board proposed that every four (4) issued
and unissued existing shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company would be consolidated into
one (1) consolidated share of par value HK$0.04 each in the share
capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”).

For details of the Share Consolidation, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 3 December 2021 and 19 January 2022 and
the Company’s circular dated 30 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s issued share capital was
HK$6,490,000 (31 December 2021: HK$6,490,000) divided into
162,250,000 (31 December 2021: 649,000,000) ordinary Shares of
par value of HK$0.04 (31 December 2021: HK$0.01) each.
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Capital Commitments

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group did not have any
capital commitments contracted but not provided for.

Future Plans for Material Investments and Capital Assets

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not have any
plans for material investments or capital assets as at 31 December
2022.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates
and Joint Ventures

During the Relevant Period, the Group did not have any material
acquisitions or disposals of subsidiaries and affiliated companies.

Litigation

In March 2022, a claim was brought against Botop Engineering
(Macau) Limited (“Botop”), a company incorporated in Macau with
limited liability and a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, by
Art Smart Construction Engineering Limited (the “Plaintiff”), which
is a subcontractor of Botop, for allegedly due and outstanding
subcontracting fee in respect of certain variation works and retention
payable for a project in Macau in the amount of MOP1,884,000,
together with relevant costs and interest so arisen (the “Claim”). As
of the date of this report, the date of the court hearing for the Claim
has not been fixed. In relation to the said project, the Company
has recognised the retention payable of MOP403,000 as at 31
December 2022 and 2021 and recognised subcontracting fees of
MOP1,481,000 as cost of sales in profit or loss for the year ended
31 December 2022. Taking into account the nature of the Claim and
the amount involved thereunder, the Board considers that the Claim
does not have material impact on the Group’s normal business and
operations.

Contingent Liabilities
Save as disclosed in note 26 of the notes to the consolidated financial

statements, as at 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the
Group did not have other material contingent liabilities.
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Foreign Exchange Exposure

The Group’s revenue generating operations are mainly transacted
in Hong Kong dollars and Macau Pataca. The Directors consider the
impact of foreign exchange exposure to the Group is minimal and
the Group did not engage in any derivatives agreements nor commit
to any financial instrument to hedge its foreign exchange exposure
during the Relevant Period.

Pledge of Assets

Save for the pledged bank deposits as disclosed in note 18 of the
notes to the consolidated financial statements, as at 31 December
2022 and 2021, the Group did not have other pledge of assets.

Employees and Remuneration Policies

As at 31 December 2022, the Group employed a total of 230 (31
December 2021: 339) employees, of whom 170 (31 December
2021: 275) were labour workers nominated by subcontractors. The
decrease in the number of employees was mainly attributable to the
decrease of labour workers nominated by subcontractors resulting
from the substantial completion of certain sizable projects as at 31
December 2022. The relevant cost of employing the labour workers
nominated by subcontractors was classified as subcontracting
charges and the staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments, of the
Group were approximately HK$27.2 million for the Relevant Period
(2021: approximately HK$26.8 million).

The Group promotes individuals based on their performance and
development potential in the positions held. In order to attract
and retain high quality staff, competitive remuneration package is
offered to employees (with reference to market norms and individual
employees’ performance, qualification and experience). On top of
basic salaries, bonuses may be paid with reference to the Group'’s
performance as well as individual’s performance. Other staff benefits
include provision of retirement benefits, medical benefits and
sponsorship of training courses.

Events after the Reporting Period

No significant events have taken place subsequent to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE

The Directors and the management of the Group recognise the
importance of sound corporate governance to the long-term success
and continuing development of the Group. Therefore, the Board is
committed to upholding good corporate standards and procedures,
so as to enhance the accountability system and transparency of the
Group, protect the interests of the Company’s stakeholders and
create value for shareholders of the Company. The discussion and
analysis of the group’s performance has been set out in “Management
Discussion and Analysis” on pages 7 to 15 of this the annual report.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Corporate Governance
Code (the "CG Code") as set out in Appendix 15 of the GEM Listing
Rules. Throughout the Relevant Period, the Company has adopted
and complied with, where applicable, the CG Code to ensure that
the Group’s business activities and decision-making processes are
regulated in a proper and prudent manner, except for Code Provision
C.2.1 of the CG Code.

Pursuant to Code Provision C.2.1 of the CG Code, the roles of
chairman and chief executive officer should be separate and should
not be performed by the same individual. Mr. Chung Chi Keung
("Mr. Chung”) is currently the chairman of the Board and the chief
executive officer of the Company, responsible for formulating
the overall business strategies and overseeing the business and
operation of the Group. Considering that Mr. Chung has been
responsible for the overall management and operation of the Group
since its inception, the Board believes that it is in the best interest
of the Group to have Mr. Chung taking up both roles for effective
management and business development.
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CULTURE

The Board believes that a healthy corporate culture underpins the
long-term business, economic success and sustainable growth of the
Group. A strong culture enables the Company to deliver long-term
sustainable performance and fulfil its role as a responsible corporate
citizen. The Company is committed to developing a positive and
progressive culture that is built on its purpose, vision, mission and
values. The followings are the key features of the Company’s culture:

Integrity

The Group is committed to achieving high standards of business
ethics and corporate governance across all our activities and
operations. The Directors, management and staff are all required to
act lawfully, ethically and responsibly, and the required standards
and norms are explicitly set out in the training materials for all new
staff and embedded in various policies such as the Group’s employee
handbook (including therein the Group’s code of conduct), the anti-
corruption policy and the whistleblowing policy of the Group.

Commitment

The Group believes that the culture of commitment to workforce
development, workplace safety and health, diversity, and
sustainability is one where people have a feeling of commitment and
emotional engagement with the Group’s mission. This sets the tone
for a strong, productive workforce that attracts, develops, and retains
the best talent and produces the highest quality work. Moreover, the
Company’s strategy in the business development and management
are to achieve long-term, steady and sustainable growth, while
having due considerations from environment, social and governance
aspects.

The Board sets and promotes corporate culture and expects and
requires all employees to reinforce. All of our new employees are
required to attend orientation and training programs so that they
may better understand our corporate culture, structure and policies,
learn relevant laws and regulations, and raise their quality awareness.
In addition, from time to time, the Company will invite external
experts to provide training to our management personnel to improve
their relevant knowledge and management skills.

The Board considers that the corporate culture and the purpose,
values and strategy of the Group are aligned.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Overall Management

The Board is responsible for the overall management of the business
of the Group, formulating the Group’s overall strategic direction and
corporate governance and maintaining appropriate levels of review,
challenge and guidance in its relationship with the management. The
management is delegated with the authority and responsibility by
the Board for the day-to-day management and administration of the
Group.

The Board is provided with the updates from management to give a
balanced and understandable assessment of the performance, recent
development and prospects of the Group on a regular basis. The
Board is the ultimate decision-making body for all matters material to
the Group and discharges its responsibilities on corporate governance
either by itself or the Board Committees set out in Code Provision
A.2.1 of the CG Code which include the following:

1.  to develop and review the policies and practice on corporate
governance of the Group and make recommendations;

2. toreview and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of the Directors and senior management;

3. to review and monitor the Group’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;

4. to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual applicable to the Directors and employees;
and

5.  to review the Company’'s compliance with the CG Code and
disclosure in the corporate governance report of the Company.
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Composition of the Board

As at 31 December 2022, the Board comprises five Directors,
including two executive Directors and three independent non-
executive Directors (the “INED") as set out below:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 58 to 63 of
this annual report.

In compliance with Rules 5.05A, 5.05(1) and (2) of the GEM Listing
Rules, the Company has appointed three INEDs representing not
less than one-third of the Board and at least one of whom has
appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or related
financial management expertise. The Company has received from
each INED an annual confirmation of his independence, and the
Board, through the nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”), has assessed and considered the INEDs to
be independent during the Relevant Period in accordance with Rule
5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules.

The Board considers that the balance of power and authority,
accountability and independent decision-making under our present
arrangement will not be impaired because of the diverse background
and experience of our INEDs. Furthermore, all Board Committees
including the audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) has free and direct access to the Company’s external
auditor or independent professional adviser(s) when they consider
necessary.

To the best knowledge of the Board, there are no other relationship
(including financial business, family, and other material/relevant
relationships) among the members of the Board as of the date of this
report.
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Board Independence

The Company recognises that Board independence is key to
good corporate governance. The Company has in place effective
mechanisms that underpin an independent Board and that
independent views are available.

The current composition of the Board, comprising more than one
third of the Board being INEDs, and the members of the Audit
Committee are all INEDs exceed the independence requirements
under the Listing Rules. The Nomination Committee, Remuneration
Committee and Audit Committee are all chaired by INEDs. The
remuneration of INEDs are subject to a regular review to maintain
competitiveness and commensurate with their responsibilities and
workload. The independence of each INED is assessed upon his
appointment and annually.

Directors are requested to declare their direct or indirect interests, if
any, in proposals or transactions to be considered by the Board at the
Board meetings and abstain from voting, where appropriate. External
independent professional advice is available to all Directors, including
independent non-executive Directors, whenever deemed necessary.
The INEDs have consistently demonstrated strong commitment and
the ability to devote sufficient time to discharge their responsibilities
at the Board.

The Company has also established channels through formal and
informal means whereby INEDs can express their views in an open
manner, and in a confidential manner, should circumstances requires.

The Company has reviewed the implementation of the mechanisms
in relation to the Board Independence and considered it to be
effective during the Reporting Period.
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Board Diversity

The composition of the Board is well balanced with each Director
having skills, experience and expertise complementing the business
operations and development of the Group and from a variety
of backgrounds. There is diversity of education, professional
background, functional expertise, gender, age, culture and industrial
experience.
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(As at 31 December 2022)

The Board targets to maintain at least the current level of female
representation.

A Board Diversity Policy of the Company was adopted in preparation
for the Listing and amended in December 2018 by the Board. The
said Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity at Board level
and the factors (including but not limited to skills, regional and
industry experience, professional experience, background, education,
race, gender, age, culture and other qualities, etc.) to be considered
in determining the composition of the Board so as to ensure that the
Board has the appropriate balance of skills, experience and diversity
of perspectives that are required to support the execution of its
business strategy and to maximise the Board's effectiveness.

During the Relevant Period, the Board reviewed the implementation
and effectiveness of the Board Diversity Policy and is satisfied that the
Board Diversity Policy has been properly implemented during 2022
and is effective.
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Workforce diversity

The gender ratio of male to female in the workforce (including senior
management) for the Relevant Period is 213:17. Building service
industry has generally been short of female talents due to social and
culture traditions. The total gender diversity of the Group is balanced
and the Group will continue to maintain the gender diversity in
workforce. For further details of gender ratio and initiatives taken
to improve gender diversity together with the relevant data, please
refer to the disclosure in the Environmental, Social and Governance
Report.

Board Process and Meetings

The Board meets regularly to determine overall strategies, receive
management updates, approve business plans as well as financial
results and to consider other significant matters to the Group.
Management also provides updates to the Board with respect to the
business activities and development of the Group on a regular basis.

Each Director ensures that he/she can give sufficient time and
attention to the affairs of the Company and contribute to the Group’s
development through their constructive and informed comments. All
of the members of the Board have also disclosed and updated their
number and nature of offices held and time involved in handling the
matters of the Company on a regular basis.

During the Relevant Period, the Board had held four meetings to
approve, among other things, matters relating to the quarterly,
interim and annual financial results, the scope of services and related
fees to the external auditors and to review the business strategies
and consider the reports from each Board Committee. The Board
also considered and approved various matters, among other things,
including the engagement of consultant to internal control function.
The Directors’ attendance records of the Board meetings held during
the Relevant Period are set out below. An annual general meeting
("AGM") and a private meeting between the Chairman and the
INEDs as required by Code C.2.7 of the CG Code had been held
during the Relevant Period.
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Members of the Board BEEEegE

Attendance of Board and Committee Meeting, Annual General RIFEHEHEEEESRZEEEE  KE

Meeting and Training during the Relevant Period BFEAERIEINER
No. of No. of

No. of Audit Remuneration ~ Nomination
No. of Board Committee Committee Committee

meetings meetings meetings meetings Annual
attended/ attended/ attended/ attended/ General
eligible to eligible to eligible to eligible to Meeting
Name of Directors attend attend attend attend  (1June 2022) Training "o
BHiE/ B/ BHiE/ B/ e

RERME RERLE RERLEF QERUR BEAE
Exge¥ EBUZRE MZEEEeE REZEE (CBoCF

ESpg RE RPN RE EE VN ~A—AR) sl

Executive Directors TESR

Mr. Chung Chi Keung EEats 414 N/A 17 171 v v
TER

Ms. Lai Suk Fun BRS &L 4/4 N/A N/A N/A v v
TER TER TER

Independent Non-executive BIEHTES

Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Fric BERLL 4/4 4/4 7 N/A v 1%
TE R
Mr. Lei For FIRHE A& 414 444 N/A 171 v/ ote2 v
TEA Hit2
Mr. Lai Wai Ming REATE 4/4 444 0 /1 v o2 v
Hiit2
Notes: Kzt -

(1) This includes attending briefings, seminars, conferences, forum relevant to (1)  BIEZ B AR QD 7SN ERAR 4 2o ey B &8 =

the directors’ duties and responsibilities, the Group’s business, development, BEREM AEEEE ¥RE - RBEENGE
strategies, etc. arranged by the Company or external organisations or Mg HEg wE AHEEE EE
reading regulatory/corporate governance updates. REEFER -

(2)  Attended the AGM via tele-conference. 2 MNES#gZHAAHERFAFTAE -
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Terms of Appointment and Re-election of Directors

Each of the executive Directors have entered into a service
agreement, and each of the INEDs signed a letter of appointment
with, the Company. Both the said service agreements and letters of
appointment are for a term of three years from 27 February 2018,
being the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM, subject to
further renewal and re-election in accordance with amended and
restated Articles of Association of the Company, as amended from
time to time, (the “Articles”) and termination in accordance with
their respective terms. The service agreement of each executive
Director and the letter of appointment of each INED have been
renewed for another term of 3 years commencing from 27 February
2021 on the same terms and conditions.

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, one-third of the Directors
shall retire from office by rotation at each AGM of the Company
and every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation at least
every three years. However, a retiring Director shall be eligible for re-
election. Any Director who is appointed by the Board to fill a casual
vacancy and any Director appointed by the Board as an addition
to the existing Board shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible for re-election
at that meeting pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles.

As such, Mr. Chung and Ms. Lai Suk Fun (“Ms. Lai") will retire from
office as Directors and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM of the Company which is scheduled
to be held on Wednesday, 14 June 2023 in accordance with the
Articles and relevant code provision under the CG Code.

Code of Conduct for Securities Transactions by Directors

The Group has adopted a code of conduct regarding securities
transactions by the Directors on the terms no less exacting than the
required standard of dealing set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the
GEM Listing Rules. The Company has also made specific enquiry of all
the Directors and all Directors confirmed that they had complied with
the required standard of securities dealings regarding transactions
during the Relevant Period. The Company was not aware of any
non-compliance with the required standard of dealings regarding
securities transactions by the Directors during the Relevant Period.
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Directors’ Training and Professional Development

The Group acknowledges the importance of continuing professional
development for the Directors to extend and refresh their knowledge
and skills. Every Director keeps abreast of responsibilities as a
director of the Company and of the conduct, business activities and
developments of the Company.

The Directors are fully aware of the requirement under the Code
Provision C.1.4 of the CG Code regarding professional development.
During the Relevant Period, the Company had provided and
circulated regulatory updates and training materials to the Directors
from time to time to ensure that all Directors keep abreast of the
latest development in the regulatory areas relating to the Group.
All Directors and provided their training records during the Relevant
Period to the Company. Details of the training records are set out on
page 23 of this annual report.

Board Committees

The Board established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee
by resolutions of Directors passed on 31 January 2018, for overseeing
particular aspects of the Group’s affairs. All Board committees were
established with written terms of reference in compliance with the
relevant code provisions of the CG Code, which are available at the
Stock Exchange’s website (www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company’s
website (www.wingfunggroup.com).
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Audit Committee

The Audit Committee was established on 31 January 2018. The
Audit Committee currently consists of three members, namely Mr.
Choy Hiu Fai Eric (“Mr. Choy"), Mr. Lei For (“Mr. Lei”) and Mr.
Lai Wai Ming (“Mr. Lai"”), all of whom are our INEDs. Mr. Choy is
the chairman of the Audit Committee, who holds the appropriate
professional qualifications as required under Rules 5.05(2) and 5.28
of the GEM Listing Rules.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the appointment or re-
appointment and removal of external auditor; review financial
statements/information of the Company and judgments in respect of
financial reporting; oversee the effectiveness of the procedures of the
internal control procedures and risk management of the Group; and
review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and disclosure
in the Corporate Governance Report.

Four Audit Committee meetings were held during the Relevant
Period. Details of the attendance records of each Audit Committee’s
member are set out on page 23 of this annual report. During
the said meetings, the Audit Committee had reviewed and made
recommendations on various matters including the annual, interim
and quarterly financial results and the respective financial reporting
of the Group, status on the internal control, financial control and
risk management, the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions, discussed with the
management and the external auditor on the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group, the auditor’s independence
status of, audit and non-audit services provided by the auditor and
re-appointment of the external auditor. The Committee also reviewed
and made recommendation to the Board regarding the engagement
of consultant to the internal control function and change of auditor
during the Relevant Period. More information about the internal
control and risk management can be found on pages 30 to 32 of this
annual report.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the audited consolidated
financial statements of the Group for the Relevant Period and was of
the opinion that the said audited consolidated financial statements
have been prepared in compliance with the applicable accounting
standards and the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee members also met
the external auditor in the absence of the executive Directors and
management to discuss the audit related matters.
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Remuneration Committee

The remuneration committee of the Company (the “Remuneration
Committee”) was established on 31 January 2018. The Remuneration
Committee consists of three members and is chaired by an INED and
comprises a majority of INEDs in accordance with the requirements
under Rule 5.34 of the GEM Listing Rules. This includes Mr. Lai who
is the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and Mr. Choy, both
of whom are our INEDs, and our executive Director, Mr. Chung.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to make
recommendations to the Board on the overall remuneration policy
and structure relating to all Directors, senior management and
general staff of the Group assessing the performance of executive
Directors, approving the terms of executive Directors’ service
contracts and to ensure that none of the Directors or any their
associates determine their own remuneration.

One Remuneration Committee meeting was held during the Relevant
Period to review the remuneration structure of the Directors.
Details of the attendance records of each Remuneration Committee
members are set out on page 23 of this annual report.

Directors” Remuneration Policy

A directors’ remuneration policy has been adopted. It aims to set out
the Company’s policy in respect of remuneration paid to Executive
Directors and Non-executive Directors.

The directors’ remuneration policy sets out the remuneration
structure that allows the Company to attract, motivate and retain
qualified Directors who can manage and lead the Company in
achieving its strategic objective and contribute to the Company’s
performance and sustainable growth, and to provide Directors with a
balanced and competitive remuneration. The remuneration policy is,
therefore, aiming at being competitive but not excessive. To achieve
this, remuneration package is determined with reference to a matrix
of factors, including the individual performance, qualification and
experience of Directors concerned and prevailing industry practice.
It will be reviewed and, if necessary, updated from time to time to
ensure its continued effectiveness.
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Directors and Senior Management’s Remuneration

Particulars of the Directors’ remuneration for the Relevant Period are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

Pursuant to code provision E.1.5. of the CG Code, the remuneration
of the members of the senior management (other than the Directors)
whose particulars are contained in the section headed “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” of this annual report
for the Relevant Period by band is set out below.
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Number of Individual

A

For the year

For the year

ended ended

31 December 31 December

Remuneration Band (in HK$) 2022 2021

HE-T-_—_§ #HE-T=-—F

t=A=t-B +-A=t-H

FEE (BT EEE HFE

Nil to 1,000,000 £ % 1,000,000 1 1

1,000,001 to 1,500,000 1,000,001 £ 1,500,000 1 1
Nomination Committee REEZEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 31 January 2018.
The Nomination Committee consists of three members and is chaired
by an INED and comprises a majority of INEDs in accordance with the
requirements under Rule 5.36A of the GEM Listing Rule. This includes
Mr. Lei who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee and Mr.
Lai, both of whom are our INEDs, and our executive Director, Mr.
Chung.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee are to review the
structure, size and composition of the Board annually by reference
to the factors as set out in the Diversity Policy, identify individuals
suitably qualified to become Board members; assess independence
of independent non-executive Directors and make recommendations
to the Board on matters relating to the appointment and re-
appointment of Directors with reference to the Nomination Policy.
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To enhance the nomination process for a director candidate, a
Nomination Policy was adopted as a guidance on the selection
process and board succession planning. The Nomination Committee
utilises various methods for identifying director candidates, including
recommendations from the Board members, management, and
professional search firms and may review of resume and job history,
conduct personal interviews and verification of professional and
personal references or perform the background checks, etc. On
evaluation of the director candidates including incumbents and
candidates nominated by the Shareholders, the Board and the
Nomination Committee will take into account whether a candidate
has the qualifications, skills and experience, gender diversity, etc.
that can add to and complement the range of skills, experience
and background of the existing Directors and may consider the
following qualifications are at a minimum to be required of a director
candidate in recommending to the Board potential new Director, or
the continued service of existing Director:

o the highest personal and professional ethics and integrity;

o proven achievement and competence in the nominee’s field
and the ability to exercise sound business judgment; skills that
are complementary to those of the existing Board;

o the ability to assist and support management and make
significant contributions to the Company’s success;

o an understanding of the fiduciary responsibilities that is
required of a member of the Board and the commitment
of time and energy necessary to diligently carry out those
responsibilities; and

o independence as required by the GEM Listing Rules.

During the Relevant Period, one Nomination Committee meeting
was held to review the structure, size and composition of the
Board by reference to the criteria as mentioned above, assess the
independence of the INEDs and make recommendation on the
re-election of the Directors at the annual general meeting of the
Company held on 1 June 2022.

Summary of the Board Diversity Policy and its implementation can be
found on page 21 of this annual report. Details of the attendance
records of each Nomination Committee member are set out on page
23 of this annual report.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Mr. Law Pak Hin Edward (“Mr. Law") was appointed as Company
Secretary of the Company on 14 February 2017. Please refer to the
section “Biographical details of Directors and Senior Management”
for his biographical information.

During the Relevant Period, Mr. Law undertook more than 15 hours
of professional training as required by the Rule 5.15 of the GEM
Listing Rules to update his skills and knowledge.

DIRECTORS’ AND EXTERNAL AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparation of the
financial statements which give a true and fair of the state of affairs
of the Group. In preparing the financial statements which give a true
and fair view, it is fundamental that appropriate accounting policies
should be selected and applied consistently.

The statement of external auditor about its reporting responsibilities
on the consolidated financial statements is set out in the independent
auditor’s report on pages 77 to 84 of this annual report.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group and the Board recognise the importance of good
internal control procedures including the procedures for handling
and dissemination of inside information and its effectiveness in
safeguarding the Shareholders’ interests. The Group has strictly
prohibited unauthorised use of confidential or inside information or
any use of such information for the advantage of any individual. The
Board also acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and discharges its responsibilities to
oversee management in design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control system and its
effectiveness. As delegated by the Board, the Audit Committee will
review of the Company’s financial controls, risk management and
internal control system and its effectiveness and report to the Board
on a regular basis and at least annually.
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The Group also established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group’s risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry and
market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and senior
management are responsible for identifying the analysing the risk
associated with their respective function, preparing and measuring
risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk management.
More information about the principal risks and uncertainties faced by
the Group can be found on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance covering the
Group's operation processes relating to subcontract, purchase and
expenditure and human resources, etc. and overseen their operations
by the senior management. In view of the size and business nature
of the Group, the Company does not establish a standalone internal
audit function but has engaged an external independent consultant
to review and assess our internal control systems (including financial,
operational and management systems, compliance and governance
matters) during the Relevant Period. No material internal control
deficiency was identified by the external consultant and the Group’s
management had worked with the external consultant to enhance
the Group’s internal control system.

During the Relevant Period, the Audit Committee, has conducted
a review of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group. The external internal control consultant
also reported to the Audit Committee on their factual findings and
recommendation for improvements on our internal control systems
over the abovementioned processes and procedures.

The Group has implemented the necessary internal control measures
based on the recommendation of the external internal control
consultant. The external internal control consultant confirmed such
modified and new internal control procedures are satisfactorily
implemented upon the conduct of follow-up review. The Audit
Committee was satisfied and considers that the Group's risk
management and internal control procedures are sufficient to meet
the Company’s needs in its current business environment and in
terms of practicability.

Hence, the Group considers its risk management and internal control
systems effective and adequate.
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Anti-Corruption

The Group is committed to preventing, detecting, and reporting
to any levels of bribery and corruption. The Anti-Corruption Policy
was adopted in August 2022 to provide principles for all directors,
officers, and employees to operate conduct business with integrity
and to reduce the risk of corruption and bribery. The Group conducts
periodic and systematic fraud risk assessments to mitigate fraud risks
identified internally and externally. Proper trainings and briefings
related to bribery, corruption, conflicts of interest, money laundering
and financing of terrorism, non-compliance with the Prevention of
Bribery Ordinance will also be provided to all employees.

Whistleblowing

A Whistleblowing Policy was adopted in August 2022 to provide
guidance on the procedure of reporting allegations of any fraud
and misconduct, malpractice or irregularity by employees and
stakeholders. All filed whistleblowing reports and the identity of
the whistleblowers are treated in a strictly confidential manner in
accordance with the procedures set out in the policy. The matter
raised may be investigated internally and referred to the Board, or be
referred to external lawyers or auditors.

Once the investigation is completed, a report including the impact
of the matter reported and an action plan will be prepared by
the Audit Committee. Disciplinary and other appropriate actions
will be determined by the responsible line management while
recommendations will be made by the Audit Committee for the
Board’s final decision on the actions required.

No incident of fraud or misconduct that has material effect on the
Group’s financial statements or overall operations was reported
during the Relevant Period. The Whistleblowing Policy is reviewed
annually by the Audit Committee to ensure its effectiveness.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Company considers stable and sustainable returns to the
Shareholders to be its goal and endeavours to maintain a dividend
policy to achieve such goal.

The Company has adopted a Dividend Policy as a guidance on the
payment of the dividend. In deciding whether to propose a dividend
and in determining the dividend amount, the Board would take into
account the Group’s results of operations, earnings performance,
cashflows, financial condition, future prospects, as well as statutory
and regulatory restrictions on the payment of dividends, and other
factors that the Board may consider relevant. The Board will review
from time to time the above factors in determining any dividend
proposal, there can be no assurance that dividends will be declared
or paid in any particular amount for any given period.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Mazars CPA Limited (“Mazars”) is the external auditor of the
Company which was appointed by the Board on 29 October 2021
following the resignation of PricewaterhouseCoopers (“PwC") on the
same date.

The Audit Committee is responsible for making recommendation to
the Board on the resignation, appointment or re-appointment and
removal of the external auditor, which is subject to the approval by
the Board and/or at the general meetings of the Company by its
shareholders. The Audit Committee would consider various factors
including the independence, experience and qualification of auditor,
their fee, terms of engagement and staffing plan for recommendation
to the Board for the appointment or re-appointment of the auditor
of the Company.

For the Relevant Period, the fee paid or payable in respect of the
statutory audit services and non-audit services of the Group are as
follows:
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FY2022 FY2021

SZRCCHREE T -MEBEE

Statutory audit services ETEBZRS 680 680
Non-audit services for tax advisory AN IFBRZRE 22 22
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS AND INVESTOR
RELATIONS

General Meeting

As one of the measures to safeguard the Shareholders’ interests
and rights, separate resolutions will be proposed at Shareholders’
meeting on each substantial issue including the re-election of
individual directors. All resolutions put forward at the Shareholders’
meeting will be conducted by poll pursuant to the GEM Listing Rules
and the poll voting results will be published on the Stock Exchange’s
website (www.hkexnews.com) and the Company’'s website
(www.wingfunggroup.com). During the Relevant Period, an AGM of
the Company was held on 1 June 2022 (the “2022 AGM") to seek
the Shareholders’ approval on, among other things, the granting the
general mandates to issue and repurchase the Company’s shares and
re-election of the Directors. The Board member’s attendance record is
set out in page 23 to this annual report.

The forthcoming AGM is scheduled to be held on Wednesday, 14
June 2023 and notice of the meeting will be sent to the Shareholders
in accordance with the relevant requirements under the Articles.

Procedures and Right for Shareholders to Convene
Extraordinary General Meeting

The following procedures for shareholders to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (the "EGM") are subject to the
Articles, and the applicable legislation and regulation, in particular
the GEM Listing Rules:

1 If any one or more Shareholder(s) holding at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid-
up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at the
general meetings of the Company, such Shareholder(s) may
submit a written requisition to the Board or the secretary of the
Company to require an extraordinary general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
in such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within three
(3) months after the deposit of such requisition.
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2. The Board should within 21 days from the date of the deposit
of the requisition proceed duly to convene the EGM to be
held within a further 21 days. If the Board fails to do so,
the requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may do so in the
same manner, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

Shareholders may also make reference to Article 12 of the Articles.

Shareholders who have enquiries regarding the above procedures
may write to the company secretary of the Company at Unit D,
21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong.

Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director of the Company

If a Shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with the appointment or election
of Director(s), wishes to propose a person for election as a Director
at that meeting, he/she may lodge a written notice at the Company’s
principal place of business in Hong Kong at Unit D, 21/F., Tower B,
Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong for the attention of the company secretary of the Company.
Detailed procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election
as a Director of the Company can be found on the Company’s
website (www.wingfunggroup.com).

Procedure for Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meetings

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to make proposals
or move resolutions at Shareholders’ meeting under the Articles or
the laws of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to make
proposals or move a resolution may, however, convene an EGM in
accordance with the “Procedures and Rights for Shareholders to
Convene Extraordinary General Meeting” set out above.
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Investors Relations and Communication with Shareholders

The Board recognises the importance of maintaining an ongoing
dialogue with the Shareholders through various channels
including general meetings and corporate communications such as
announcements, quarterly, interim and annual reports and circulars.
Latest information of the Group is also available on the Company’s
website.

The Company has adopted its Shareholders’ communications
policy. Enquiries and proposals from Shareholders, investors and all
stakeholders are welcomed. Enquires to the Board or the Company
may be sent by post to the Company’s principal place of business in
Hong Kong at Unit D, 21/F., Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong. Such written enquires
or proposal with full name, contact details and identification must
deposit and send to said address.

Any enquires in relation to the Company’s shareholdings, share
transfer or registration may contact the Company’s share registrar.
Their contact details are set out in the section headed “Corporate
Information” of this annual report.

The Company has established a range of communication
channels between Itself and Its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders. These include (i) the publication of quarterly, interim
and annual reports and/or dispatching circulars, notices, and other
announcements; (i) the annual general meeting or extraordinary
general meeting providing a forum for Shareholders to raise
comments and exchanging views with the Board; (iii) updated and
key information of the Group available on the Company’s website
and the Stock Exchange’s website; (iv) the Company’s website
offering communication channel between the Company and its
stakeholders; (v) the Company’s share registrar in Hong Kong serving
the Shareholders in respect of all share registration matters; and
(vi) attending meetings with analysts, which led by our executive
Directors with existing and potential investors.

The Company held its 2022 AGM on 1 June 2022, which was
attended by shareholders, including their proxies or representatives,
and shares voted represent 51.38% of the total issued shares of the
Company. All resolutions proposed at the 2022 AGM were passed.

Having considered the multiple channels of communication and
shareholders engagement in the general meeting held during the
year, the Board is satisfied that the shareholders communication
policy has been properly implemented during 2022 and is effective.
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CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Company first adopted its memorandum and articles of
association on 29 September 2016. Save for the adoption of the
amended and restated memorandum and articles of association of
the Company for the purpose of the Listing on 31 January 2018,
during the Relevant Period, there had been no significant changes
in the constitutional documents of the Company. The latest version
of the memorandum and articles of association of the Company is
available at the Company’s website and the website of the Stock
Exchange.
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

The objective of this Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG")
Report is to highlight the Group’s ESG performance for the purpose
of assisting all stakeholders in understanding the Group’s ESG
concepts and practices in achieving sustainable development for the
future.

Unless otherwise stated, the reporting boundary of this ESG Report
covers the business operations of the Group in both Hong Kong and
Macau during the period from 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2022
(the “Reporting Period”) relating to the overall performance, risks,
strategies, measures and commitments of four aspects: quality of the
working environment, environmental protection, operating practices
and community participation. There was no significant change in the
reporting boundary and scope for this ESG Report compared with the
previous years.

REPORTING STANDARD

The Report complies with the disclosure requirements set out in
the ESG Reporting Guide as described in Appendix 20 of the GEM
Listing Rules. An assessment of the applicability and materiality of
the relevant key performance indicators (“KPIs”) under the ESG
Reporting Guide was conducted.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

The following principles are adopted in the Report:

o Materiality: Important and relevant information to stakeholders
on different ESG aspects is covered in the Report. A materiality
assessment was conducted to determine material ESG issues
with results approved by the Board.

° Quantitative: The relevant standards, methodologies and
assumptions used to prepare the quantitative information is
disclosed, as appropriate. Quantitative information is provided
with narrative and comparative figures, where possible.

o Consistency: Consistent methodologies are used to prepare
and present ESG data in the Report, unless otherwise specified,
to allow for meaningful comparisons.

o Balance: The information is presented without the inappropriate
use of selections, omissions or other forms of manipulation that
would influence a decision or judgment by the reader.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Board has overall responsibility for the Group’s ESG strategy and
reporting. The Board is responsible for evaluating and determining
the Group’s ESG-related risks and ensuring that appropriate and
effective ESG risk management and internal control systems are
in place. It is the responsibility of our management to effectively
coordinate the application of the Group’s environment, employment
and service quality assurance policies.

The Board leads and provides direction to management by instituting
ESG policies and initiatives, supervising their implementation
and monitoring ESG performance. The Board reviews ESG affairs
regularly, including environmental protection, employment and
labour practices, operating practices, and community investment, and
implements appropriate measures to enhance the ESG performance
of the Group. The Board continues to explore ways to further
strengthen the ESG governance of the Group.

STAKEHOLDERS' FEEDBACK

As the Group strives for excellence, stakeholders’ feedback is
appreciated, especially on topics listed as the highest importance in
the materiality assessment and its ESG approach and performance.
Please give your suggestions or share your views with us at
http://wingfunggroup.com/contact.

STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT

The Group actively engages with stakeholders to identify ESG issues
that need to be addressed. Stakeholder engagement is the process
by which an organisation involves parties who may be affected by
the decision it makes or can influence the implementation of its
decisions. The Management had performed the following:

o generated a full and complete list of stakeholders by consulting
various departments within the Group;

o relied on the on-going communication channels and day-to-
day interactions and dedicated meetings (whenever deemed
necessary) to engage these stakeholders; and

° reduced the list of stakeholders into a workable size, and
complete the Stakeholder Influence — Dependency Matrix to
work out a list of key stakeholders.
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e High-quality products and services

e Protection of customer rights and
personal data
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e Compliance with laws and regulations
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MATERIALITY ASSESSMENT

During the Reporting Period, the Group has evaluated a number
of environmental, social and operating items, and assessed their
importance to stakeholders and the Group through various channels.
This assessment helps to ensure that the Group’s business objectives
and development direction satisfy with the stakeholders’ expectations
and requirements. The Group's and stakeholders’ matters of concern
are listed out in the following materiality matrix:

Step 1: Identify potential ESG issues

Taking into account the requirements of “ESG Reporting Guide”
and the latest sustainability trends in the industry to identify relevant
material issues. Twenty-one ESG issues were identified where they
mattered most to the Group’s businesses and stakeholders:

Step 2: Materiality assessment

To determine the materiality of the ESG issues, the view of the
Group’s senior management as well as our key stakeholders was
sought. The relevance/importance of each of the ESG issues was
assessed and scored according to their views on a scale of 0 to 10 (0
is irrelevant and 10 is crucial).

Step 3: Priority

Based on the materiality assessment result, the Group prioritized the
issues in two dimensions, namely, “Importance to stakeholders” and
“Importance to our operation” and prepared the materiality matrix
as below. The ESG issues that fall within the top right-hand quadrant
are of the greatest importance.
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Crucial
EHEE

Materiality to stakeholder
HERBENEEHE

Not relevant
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Aspects

Environment

Employment

Supply Chain
Management
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Materiality on ESG Issues
B HEREABENEEML

Not relevant
FHEE

Internal assessment (impact on business)

A (HEBHZE)

Major concerns

1
2
3.
4.
5
6
7

©

10.
11.

12.
13.
14.

Air emission

Greenhouse gas emission
Wastes production

Natural resources consumption
Use of packaging materials
Impact to the environment
Climate change

Labour practices

Employee remuneration and benefits
Occupational safety and health
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Aspects Major concerns
Product 15.  Product/service quality and safety
Responsibility
16. Customer privacy and data security
17.  Marketing and promotion
18. Intellectual property rights

Anti-corruption  19.  Business ethics & anti-corruption
20. Internal grievance mechanism

Community 21. Participation in philanthropy

ENVIRONMENTAL

The Group does not have any factory operations nor engage in
any operations that have a substantial effect on the environment,
aside from consumption of resources by the office administrative
operations. Nevertheless, the Group pays due consideration and
effort towards compliance with applicable laws and regulations
in Hong Kong and Macau, and actively cooperate with the main
contractor in meeting the environmental protection requirements.
The majority of the work of the Group is conducted through its
sub-contractors, whereby as part of the project delivery, apart from
confirming construction quality, the project team will also monitor
the environmental performance of its subcontractors. One of the
measures includes regularly check to ensure that environmental
protection requirements imposed upon various parties, including the
main contractor, the construction site, and the Group, are met.

Emissions

As a subcontractor for the provision of supply, installation and
fitting-out services of MVAC systems for buildings in Hong Kong
and Macau, the installation activity does not cause any material
emissions or pollution generated from the Company’s operations at
construction sites.

F FEBZE
EmET 15. ER/ RBEEER
ZE

16. BEFEALNEELRZE
17. EHEREE
18, FIERERE

~&S5 19. BEEENEXRES
20. PEBE AR
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In order to minimise the production of air pollutants by motor AR EIEMELNERSLY  KEBE
vehicles, the Group promotes the use of public transport and car-  BhfE A 338 R HL 5k -

pooling.

Air emissions Unit 2022 2021
REHERE B —BC-CF —B_—F
Nitrogen oxides g 1,640 1,455
A8l N

Sulphur oxides g 24 21
k=R Nz

Respiratory suspended particles g 121 107
A RASITH T A%

Greenhouse gas emissions Unit 2022 2021
BERBHEKR B et St 2 —EB_—F
Scope 1 - petrol consumption Tonne 4.0 Bi5
F18 - VRHEREE NI

Scope 2 — electricity consumption Tonne 10.5 10.3
F2lH-FAE=E N’

Total emissions Tonne 14.5 13.8
BEERE NI

Emission intensity Tonne per million dollars of revenue 0.08 0.08
BHRRE UNU PRVl 6

Hazardous and non-hazardous waste

BEEREZERY

The major source of waste comes from construction works, whereby EEWHFERIRRKERETE A%
the Group abides by the regulations imposed by the main contractor B EFEZAZE MABHEEHENHRT - B
and the respective site. The staff and work team follow on-site T N TEBEREESEZEMRER T I
regulations on waste disposal, and would always inquire with the B HEEBIIFNERAER EEEKEH o
project management team when any difficulties are encountered.

Although the operation does not involve handling hazardous waste EEZEVE SN EEEEFEREEY &
directly, we also establish policies and guidelines for both our staff IMAE T RS BB EHERES - 0E
and our sub-contractors, for example, hazardous waste is stored EFFE YT 2L EEFZ Y UL R BTk Uk &
separately in special containers before being collected by a licenced Al * BB FHRERIRERA -

chemical waste collector.
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Waste production was mainly attributed to the discarded packaging
materials and domestic wastes of office. The operation of the Group
does not involve any production of hazardous waste. All materials
and wastes disposed at the worksites are collected by the authorised
collectors by the local government. During the Reporting Period,
the Group did not notice any non-compliance issues about waste
disposal.

Compliance with laws and regulations

The project team would also ensure the compliance with the
applicable provisions of the Waste Disposal Ordinance (Chapter 359
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and its subsidiary regulations, particularly
the Waste Disposal (Charges for Disposal of Construction Waste)
and the Waste Disposal (Chemical Waste) (General) Regulations.
During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly abides by laws and
regulations mentioned above.

Use of resources

Driven by the belief in maintaining sustainability, the Group strives
to ensure efficient use of resources, including energy, materials and
auxiliary materials. It is the Group’s policy that material ordered is ‘just
right’ for the intended project, and the Group endeavours to employ
excess material to reduce wastage

BEYHNEETIERAMRAZTCEENER
VB RREEREY AEEEL TS REM
ERERVMNEL -FAAEREE TN
K EERYE A E M BUR XA R R -
RBEME  NEELTNBTMERREE
BEVHOIERER -

BFERERER

TH B BT ERET(EYRE G (BB
EDIE359F) AR R BB AR - LH
E(EYRE (BEEMREWE) R MR
MERE ((LBREY) (—HR) R RIS -
R B BARE T LR MORR o

BRER

AEBEBREFAHEER  ROBERAR
ERER  BEER W EMNBYE - K
5 H B BOREERET B RO R I o AR T
HE - AKETREIERZHRIARDIRE

Intensity (per million

Resources utilisation Unit Consumption dollars of revenue)
ERER By HIEE ZE(BRETWE)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F —E-CF B
Electricity kWh 27,002 26,533 147 152
B TR
Unleaded petrol L 1,464 1,299 8 7

Ein)T 7t
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The Group has implemented the following schemes to reduce
consumption of energy and natural resources:

o encourage duplex printing and reuse single-side printed paper;
o idle electrical appliances are switched off;

o regular maintenance and repair for electrical appliances to
lower energy waste;

o reduce the use of disposable and non-recyclable products and
o regular maintenance and inspection of company vehicles.
Packaging materials

As the operation of the Group does not produce any tangible
products that require packaging during the Reporting Period, hence
no packaging materials were used in this regard.

Water

During the Reporting Period, our offices in both Hong Kong and
Macau lacked individual water supply systems (e.g., tap and toilet
facilities), resulting in the unavailability of information regarding
water consumption.

Due to the geographical location of the Group’s premises, the Group
did not encounter any problem in sourcing water that was fit for
purpose.

Environmental and natural resources

There are several environmental concerns that are of particular
relevance, affecting the materials and services used by the Group,
such as, air conditioning, refrigeration and heat pump technologies
which are increasingly switching to more environmentally friendly
refrigerant gases with lower ozone depletion potential and lower
global warming potential. The Group is determined to stay abreast
of development in resources and technologies benefitting the
environment with the higher requirements being imposed on MVAC
equipment and installation process. In delivering the works, the
project team would ensure that all services are conducted in an
environmentally responsible manner and ensure strict adherence
to the applicable laws in Hong Kong and Macau, such as the Noise
Control Ordinance (Chapter 40 of the Laws of Hong Kong).

RE e kEnmE
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Several other specific regulations directly related to the operations,
including the requirement of using lead-free solders for copper
pipes at freshwater Inside Services, are specified in the standard
as stipulated in the Waterworks Regulations. Another regulation
example that the Group complies with is the VOC regulation imposed
by the Environmental Protection Department. VOCs (volatile organic
compounds) are found in a wide variety of everyday products such
as solvent-based paints/coatings, adhesives, sealants, printing inks,
many consumer products, organic solvents and petroleum products.

Climate Change

Action on climate change is embedded in the Group’s business
strategy and reflected in its governance and management processes.
The table below outlines where to find the core elements of how the
Group responds to the climate change disclosure requirements in this
Report.

Core element Our response

Governance Integrate ESG topics (including climate-related
issues) in corporate decision making
Strategy Understanding climate risks and identify risk

and opportunities in low-carbon transition

Risk Management  Preparing for the transition to a low-carbon
economy

Preparing and setup measures to physical
climate risks

Targets Maintaining the GHG emission intensity at
below 0.1 tonne per million of revenue for
the next five years

ZEZHEERATHEETRMAR  BER
TERKIRE R EEIER - REKEERTE OK
TSR BI) P A E IR - R R B <7
MREGINRREREZE BB B
EaWmis - REZEFEHMEMBE A VOC (FH
HHEEEEY) - PIBREIRE,2E - FE
B -mum N2 ZEHEER EHRAH
EAHEMS

RIRE(L

EHRERECNTHEMARNEENEBEE
B WEERNEBAREENBRERE - T
KA EBEAEERYRRECWEE RN
BOBERAREANMEMLE -

BROER  BMANRE
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SOCIAL

Employment

The Group promotes equal opportunity and opposes any form of
discrimination in the hiring process. Personal attributes like race,
religion, nationality, age or gender are not considered in the hiring
process. Besides discrimination, any act of sexual harassment is
also strictly prohibited. As at 31 December 2022, the Group had
5 directors and 225 employees, including 170 labour workers
nominated by sub-contractors. The table below shows the details of
our workforce distribution:

e

AEBEERETERE BREBEBENE
AR Bk REEMW BHE - F
RN FEARRLE NS ABBRERFH

ZEB 2 BT AR

BT EILE

MERETE R -+ -_A=1+—

B REBABESZESZN225%ES

B

BREIEZMIT0ZL T - TRIWREI DM

BB

No. of staff
BIA¥™

Gender 15y
Male S 213
Female peqi 17
Age Group FEAF
19-40 19 £ 40 5% 104
41-60 41 RE 605 99
61 or above 613880 I 27
Geographical region HFEH
Macau BT 19
Hong Kong B 211
Employment type AR
Full-time g 228
Part-time R 2
The Group welcomes any age range of people to join the Group as R EERELSTEFT LI H > AEBELT

long as they are keen to learn and participate. Although the Group
treated all application irrespective of gender, due to the laborious
nature of the majority of their operation at the construction sites, the
majority of the potential and successful application tends to be male.

FIFERENALTIMAREE

MARD EEBEIMETIE
K ERERRSF MK -

cBEAEET

R EHFEMEEES  BhN R

CHMARZHEBRE
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The Group strives to maintain employee turnover rate at an
acceptable level so as to facilitate the accumulation of professional
skills and experience. During the year 2022, the permanent staff
turnover rate is about 11 %, which is categorised by gender, age
group and geographical location as follows:

REBHNBE IHBEREFETEZEINK
FoUREBERERMBHBER - R _F
ZZF RHEBIRBELE11% LR -
FEAR NI R S FENT ¢

Gender Age group Geographical location
ezl FiE B i 72 3t (&
Male Female 19-40 41-60 61 or above Hong Kong Macau
B e 195 E405% A1BEE60E 61mIAL B8 P
1% 1% 15% 9% - 16% -
Compensation and dismissal H1ER

The Group offers competitive remuneration to attract and retain
talented staff members. Remuneration packages are reviewed
periodically to ensure consistency with the employment market. Laws
and regulations on minimum wage and statutory social benefits
are required to be followed. Dismissal is required to comply with
employment laws and regulations, and to follow the internal policies
and procedures, including policy on prevention of dismissal purely on
employees’ gender, marital status, pregnancy, disability, age or family
status.

Recruitment and promotion

The Group attracts talent through fair, flexible and transparent
recruitment strategy. The recruitment process includes the application
for recruitment, description of the position, collection of job
applications, interview, selection, approval, and job offers. Promotion
is based on performance and suitability.

Working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare

Employees’ working hours, rest periods, benefits and welfare,
including social security benefits, mandatory provident fund, and
labour pension, are required to be in compliance with employment
or labour laws and regulations. Selected benefit programs, including
medical coverage, are also provided.

AREEEH AT T IR H B A% 5| REe B A
BB T - T FIE HEL T B IARERE
EHmE W REIEREELSENE
ERPOERATES - MELVABTE X
BEER YETABRRNRESF B
IHEHNEE MR - BRRR - 2R BE -
F iR SR EA R 0 # E AR R R

HRREH

AEBEBRNY  ABERERAENRER
BEIRSIAA - IS BIE B A EE - B -
WERBMSPE ma BE HERER-
B REBERREERREME
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Equal opportunities, diversity and anti-discrimination

The Group is an equal opportunity employer. The Group endeavours
to provide a fair workplace for employees and follow the principles
of equality and non-discrimination. Recruitment, remuneration,
promotion, and benefits are required to be handled based on
objective assessment, equal opportunity and non-discrimination
regardless of gender, race, age, or other measures of diversity.

Compliance with laws and regulations

During the Reporting Period, the Group strictly abides by laws and
regulations related to employment, including but not limited to the
following:

Hong Kong Employment Ordinance
o Employees’ Compensation Ordinance
o Minimum wage Ordinance
o Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance
o Sex Discrimination Ordinance
o Family Status Discrimination Ordinance
o Race Discrimination Ordinance
o Disability Discrimination Ordinance
o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour

Macau . Labour Relations Law

Health and safety

The Group is committed to strict compliance with all relevant health
and safety legislation. Although the works carried out by the Group
and its sub-contractors do not involve heavy machinery or manual
handling of hazardous materials, the staff teams are exposed to
relatively higher health and safety risks. The project management
team is committed to conducting on-going risk assessments to
identify and manage these risks, with the objectives of achieving the
goal of zero accidents.

R HERERRE

FPEHRE ZTIERRER

AEERTERERET AKERNIRESR
%ﬂﬁ"q:EI’JI{’Eia RETFERTRR
MRA - B - HM - HTBRENARER
BRrE "ﬁ%Aﬁi?ﬁiﬁ&%fi ARl
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ERIOER - BREARRATEIEA
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In most cases, the main contractor or the Management of the
construction site would already have developed and deployed to
the staff teams sets of site safety plans and instructions and requires
compliance by all subcontractors. Management of the Group works
to ensure that the subcontractors strictly observe these safety plans
and directives. Safety instructions for different operations are well-
communicated to the employees. In accordance with the safety
requirements of the Labour Department and the main contractor, we
provide the site staff with qualified safety equipment, including safety
helmets, goggles and other necessary safety precautions to ensure
the occupational safety of the staff. Personal protective equipment
specific to the type of work being performed is made available and
distributed. The site foremen are responsible for ensuring proper
use and maintenance of the equipment. The Group extends the
considerations and assessments to the subcontractors, and the
project team maintains close communication to provide the staff and
subcontractors with the latest safety information.

The Group places safety at the highest priority. Investigation is
carried out after every incident, and recommendations or corrective
actions are taken if necessary. Management will continue to maintain

REHIBR  BEREHAEEMBENEIRE
FESIERAE TEBREMBLEHIR
Eel -MESBEYEBEET AEEERE
@U]ﬁ@%%@ﬁ}?&%%?%%*%ﬁﬂ&ﬁ
3l e TREEN L 2SI EREEBEE

BIBEATENEEAERNTERE ﬁfﬁﬁ
BB TIRBEERELERE  BREL2HE
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Mt L2  BMMIEH IR HIETEE
B TER M AREEE - R THEE S HER
REBEEZENALRE ANEBMEE KT
BEREDEN MEBEEEBHERERHE
WIRESEHMEZ2EMTEIRY B -

AEBBLZENES L EBREHHEL
BETHE - WK B PREUE & SRR

E178) EEESEERTGRERFFE
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constant communication with field operations. Going forward, the & - B2 KK - KN &£ E 5 i1 f%” 7 RE
Group will reinforce the effort to strive towards the ultimate objective IR&EETZHH L THETHRKEIZ
of zero accident and zero injury rate during operations.
2022 2021 2020
Occupational health and BEERE
safety statistics RZ2EE —B-= T —F T _EF
Number of lost days due to work injury & T 5 &2 #y38 k
B & 214 359 301
Number of work-related fatal accidents T {EHREI &) Bian Sk
#H -
Number of work injuries accidents TEEHHAE 5 3 7
Accident rate per 1,000 workers 1,000 T AH)
(Hong Kong) BONK(FHB) 13 11 14
Accident rate per 1,000 workers 1,000 & T AH)
(Macau) BoNR ORF) 29 - 54
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Compliance with laws and regulations

The Group was not subject to any material administrative penalties or
fines for any breach of laws or regulations relating to the provision of
a safe working environment or the protection of employees against
occupational hazards during the reporting period.

Hong Kong e Employment Ordinance

o Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
Macau °

Occupational Safety and Health Law for
Construction Industry

Development and training

The Group is devoted to creating a learning culture among the
teams, so as to enable the staff in developing their career and
enabling them to reach their goals. The Group therefore, from time
to time, organise the teams to attend external training, such as the
BIM induction course. Training is also provided to Management
with the aim to maintain and enhance the technical knowledge
and professional skills possessed. Training for labours and staff
in construction sites mainly includes safety precautions in the
construction industry and case studies of accidents that happened
before.

The Group attach great importance to the quality of our construction
management and safety concerns, as at 31 December 2022, the
Group had a total of 8 employees and 170 labours have received
training. The details are as follows:

RE e kEnmE

BFERR LN

RBEHH AEEYBEREZRABERZ
ETERRIRERELIBERBENEMR
ERBOER MBI T ERITRES X IR

7B o (EmIEH)

o (BEZRZRER)
R o (BEXBRLEREL
BRREI

AEERNEBBFPEEEEX - EET
EREXNEDNER AU AEEAEHE
BEB2EBINEEIFY - IR EERRE N
BRE-BMTAEEERMEI  EEE
FRReRERMAMBEEERE - BT
WRETHEIITEERRERZERMEE
FBEBIN BRI -

AEEEFEREMEIEENEERT S
ME #E2_fT-__F+-_A=+—H8" 'K
SEBEHEESHEE 17T0BTAESZ T -
FIBIT

Percentage of

Employees Average
Receiving Training
Training Hours

ZIREES F 39 3% 91 B 21

Gender MRl
Male S
Female gl
Job position T{ERR AL
Senior management SBRERAB
Management BIEE

General staff and labour —mRETIKRTA

79% 2.4
59% 5.7
100% 12.0
17% 40.0
78% 2.0
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Labour standards

The Group strictly prohibits the use of forced and child labour. The
Group complies with relevant regulations and laws to safeguard the
rights of our employees, and will not tolerate labour exploitation.
During the recruitment process, we verify the age of applicants
and the practice is extended to the workers hired by our sub-
contractors. The Group prevents hiring child labour by conducting
an identification check of every new employee. To ensure voluntary
employment, the Group specifies relevant requirements in the
Staff Manual on workers’ extra working hours and related pay
arrangements to protect the rights of both the Group and its
employees, as well as avoid forced labour. The Group’s Human
Resources Department will review the recruitment practices regularly
to ensure that the measures against child and forced labor in place
are effective.

Without exception, during the Reporting Period, the Group complied
the relevant laws and regulations regarding child labour and forced
labour, including but not limited to the following.

Hong Kong e Employment Ordinance
o Minimum wage Ordinance
o Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child
Labour

Macau . Labour Relations Law

Supply chain management

The materials used by the Group are mainly materials and parts for
the MVAC systems. To fulfil the Group’s responsibility to the society,
guidelines regarding environmental protections have been set and
constantly reviewed by Management. All works and materials used
by sub-contractors have to comply with the policy. To ensure the
delivery of materials, the geographical region of the supplier is also
concerned.

Supplier and Subcontractor Control and Monitoring

The performance of suppliers and subcontractors on our approved
list are reviewed on an ongoing basis through site inspection and
risk assessment. Sub-contractors are assessed continuously based on
performances, time of completion and services provided during the
retention period of the project. Suppliers are assessed continuously
based on delivery time, quality of materials and after-sales services.
The Group prioritises environmentally friendly products and services
when selecting suppliers. Suppliers and subcontractors with
unsatisfactory performance might be removed from the approved
list. During the Reporting Period, no major complaints on the quality
of materials used and the performance of works have been received.
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Supplier and Subcontractor Profile REBRZGEBN

As at 31 December 2022, we have a total of 227 suppliersand 92 WR-_ZE-—F+-A=+—H HfHEES
subcontractors. They are mainly from Hong Kong and Macau. HO27TEHERRNREIBH -BEEER
EENYSY S

No. of

No. of suppliers subcontractors

HEBEAE 2EBEHE

Hong Kong aBB 76 43

Macau R 151 49

Total e 227 92
Product responsibility EmEE
Quality Management ESEH

The Group is responsible to the main contractor for the works the AEBHRETKHIREAREmEH A
Group had completed, and has not encountered any issues of a WEBEHIMNEREEONREEE - AEH
product recall or quality issue. The Group implements a series of B — X5 REELEHABR I ERY
quality control measures to ensure the quality of work:

AEMHEEEREBRE RSB AR

o Trainings are provided to our project management teams and

our subcontracted workers to ensure their understanding of, BFI - BRESHAREERMO D
and compliance with, our quality standards; BiEEE

e Onsite inspections and rectification are carried out at each o  REELEMBEITIRIGIHNE LW - 4

construction site. Immediate rectification measures would BRI E B - G S B PR EREE
be taken if any quality control issues are identified. Upon W - B  BRMEEHREESE
rectification, we re-inspect the quality control issues to ensure EERBANBRZEMRBEEIRRA
that such issues have been resolved; and 54

e We require sub-contractors to fully abide by our quality control o HFIZEkH BEEAKRFINELEIER M
measures when performing work for our construction projects. TH - TREFRMNmE EERE -

The Group did not receive any significant complaints relating to our RIRFEHE - AEB T ER AL 2 MEFRE
services provided and recalls any products due to safety and health HZEET A BBATIREREEIENE KK
reasons during the Reporting Period. FARBEERER -
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Data privacy

In accordance with the regulations set out in the Group’s Code of
Conduct, the Group takes all necessary steps to ensure the data of
its employees, customers, subcontractors, and suppliers is stored
securely and kept confidential. All tender documents, service
contracts, applicable licenses, and employees’ personal data are
carefully secured and archived.

The Group is strictly committed to complying with the Personal
Data (Privacy) Ordinance, and adheres to the relevant regulations in
the collection, disclosure, usage, retention and storage of data, to
ensure the integrity and safety of data. The information of customers
is only collected based on necessity. We regularly review our data
management and provide relevant training to our employees.

Intellectual properties, marketing and labelling

The Company’s operations, primarily entailing the installation and
fitting of our MVAC systems, are not heavily reliant upon marketing
or advertising. To the Directors’ knowledge, there are no important
ramifications with respect to intellectual property, advertising and
labelling. We shall continually observe the business climate, so as to
identify any noteworthy risks in this regard.

Anti-corruption

Any forms of bribery, forgery and misappropriation of materials,
including extortion, fraud and money laundering, are strictly
prohibited. The Anti-corruption Policy is instituted to ensure all
personnel strictly adhere to the Group’s “zero tolerance” policy
pertaining to acts of corruption, bribery, and extortion which may
take place in the course of their daily duties. The Anti-Fraud Policy
sets forth the expectations of each employee to remain vigilant
and alert to any potential fraudulent activity in the performance of
their duties. Additionally, the Staff Manual provides guidelines on
appropriate behaviour in respect of gifts, conflicts of interests and
other matters, in order to heighten the awareness of all personnel
concerning the risk of fraud. Organizational training has been
scheduled, focusing on fostering integrity and providing instruction
on recognizing and handling fraudulent acts, for both directors and
personnel.
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Whistleblowing Policy and Procedure

We encourage transparency and honesty, and provide channels
for reporting the misconduct or malpractices. The Whistleblowing
Policy safeguards those who report such activities from potential
repercussions. Employees are strongly encouraged to promptly
report any suspicious activity to their direct supervisor, senior
management, or the Audit Committee whilst preserving anonymity.
The Company shall take due care in responding to all reports of
suspected cases of fraud and conduct thorough investigations
with the utmost confidentiality. If required, corrective actions and
disciplinary action (including dismissal in certain instances) shall be
imposed expeditiously. All suspicious transactions detected from the
investigations shall be timely reported to the relevant authority by the
responsible party.

Compliance with laws and regulations

For the Reporting Period, the Group and its personnel adhered
to the relevant laws and regulations pertaining to unlawful and
corrupt practices as prescribed by the Penal Code of Macau and
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, and had not
concluded any legal proceedings involving corruption activities.

Community investment

The Group strongly believes in the concept of community co-building
to help create a coherent and harmonious community. The Group
intends to lead by example of demonstrating the importance of
community investment and encourage our staff to participate in
community initiatives through charity events, volunteering events and
donations.

During the Reporting Period, the Group has donated HKD5,000 to
support the Lighthouse Club in providing financial assistance to those
who are facing financial hardship due to accidents and sickness in
the construction industry.
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DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. CHUNG Chi Keung (% ), aged 66, is our executive
Director, the chairman of our Board and the chief executive officer
of our Company. He is also the co-founder of our Group in 1996.
He was appointed as director of the Company on 29 September
2016. Mr. Chung is primarily responsible for formulating the overall
business strategies and overseeing the business and operation of our
Group. Mr. Chung is also a director of all members of our Group.

Mr. Chung has over 47 years of experience in the supply, installation
and fitting-out of MVAC system. In March 1974, Mr. Chung
joined Young'’s Engineering Co., Ltd as an apprentice and received
training at the Major Air-conditioning Service Department. Upon the
completion of his apprenticeship, he continued to work in the same
department until July 1980. In 1987, Mr. Chung co-founded Wing
Fung Engineering Limited. In July 1996 and March 2007, Mr. Chung
established Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited (“Wing Fung HK")
and Botop, respectively and has been managing the business and
operation of the two companies in Hong Kong and Macau. From
2003 to 2006, Mr. Chung was a member of the senior management
of Dickson Group Holdings Limited (currently known as Richly Field
China Development Limited), a company listed on the main board
of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 313), and was responsible for
managing the operation of certain construction projects in Hong
Kong.

As at the date of this report, Mr. Chung owns all the issued share
capital of Wing Fung Capital Limited, the controlling Shareholders,
which owns 83,062,500 shares of the Company, representing
approximately 51.19% of all issued shares of the Company.
Accordingly, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares
owned by Wing Fung Capital Limited under the Securities and
Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).
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Ms. LAI Suk Fan (£ # %), aged 60, was appointed as our
executive Director on 24 March 2017. She is primarily responsible for
overseeing the administration and human resources functions of our
Group.

Ms. Lai studied at Lee Wai Lee Technical Institute of the Vocational
Training Council on a part-time basis and was awarded a certificate
for accounting technicians in August 1998. In 1998, Ms. Lai obtained
a certificate in Accounting-Third Level issued by the London Chamber
of Commerce and Industry Examinations Board. Ms. Lai also joined
a distance-learning programme and received a Higher Certificate
in Business Management from the Hong Kong Management
Association in June 2009.

Ms. Lai has over 41 years of experience in administration, accounting
and human resources. Ms. Lai has worked as a junior clerk at
Teamlight Enterprises (HK) Ltd. from June 1980 to March 1982,
then she joined Shirtmaster Limited as a purchasing clerk from May
1982 to February 1987. During June 1987 to July 1999, Ms. Lai has
been working in Wing Fung Engineering Limited and Wing Fung HK
and her last position was an administration officer when she left the
companies in July 1999. From February 2001 to June 2011, Ms. Lai
worked at Artsuc M&E Limited as the administration manager. In July
2011, Ms. Lai rejoined our Group as the administration manager of
Wing Fung HK.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOY Hiu Fai Eric (2B #8), aged 45, was appointed as
our independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and
is mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Choy has more than 19 years of experience in accounting. Mr.
Choy obtained a Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting
and Finance from the University of Hong Kong in November 2000.
Upon graduation, he joined Arthur Andersen & Co, an accounting
firm, in September 2000. Mr. Choy then continued his career with
PricewaterhouseCoopers as a senior associate in the assurance
and business advisory services department in July 2002. In 2004,
Mr. Choy joined Procon CPA Limited as a managing director and
he is now the head of the company’s operation in Hong Kong and
Shenzhen.

Mr. Choy has been a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants since February 2005. He was also admitted as a
member of the American Institute of Certified Public Accountants in
the United States in June 2002. Mr. Choy has been a Certified Tax
Adviser of the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong since 30 September
2010.

Mr. Choy has been an independent non-executive Director of CCIAM
Future Energy Limited (formerly known as The Hong Kong Building
and Loan Agency Limited), a company currently listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (Stock Code: 145) since July 2016.
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Mr. LEI For (FI®}), aged 45, was appointed as our independent
non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is mainly responsible
for supervising and providing independent judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lei has more than 20 years of experience in investment banking,
corporate finance and investment and management matters. Mr. Lei
obtained his Bachelor of Social Science from the Chinese University
of Hong Kong in November 2001. He started his career with L.P.
Lammas Asia Limited from September 2001 to October 2002. After
that, he worked in MasterLink Securities (Hong Kong) Corporation
Limited as an executive from December 2002 to February 2005. In
February 2005, Mr. Lei joined Haitong International Capital Limited
(previously known as Taifook Capital Limited and Tai Fook Capital
Limited) as an executive, and he left as a manager in May 2007. From
June 2007 to October 2010, he was appointed as the senior manager
and then the vice president of the corporate finance department in
ABCI Securities Company Limited. Mr. Lei then carried on his career
with Cinda (BVI) Limited as the corporate finance director of Cinda
International Capital Limited from October 2010 to April 2011. In
April 2011 to December 2016, he joined CIMB Securities Limited
as a director in investment banking. From 2017 to 2019, he joined
Apastron Capital Limited with his last position as managing director.
Mr. Lei is currently the director of Hongsong Limited.
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Mr. LAl Wai Ming (2 {2 8), aged 47, was appointed as our
independent non-executive Director on 31 January 2018 and is
mainly responsible for supervising and providing independent
judgement to the Board.

Mr. Lai graduated from the Hong Kong Polytechnic University in
November 1997 and was awarded a Bachelor of Science degree in
Building Technology and Management. Then he obtained a Master of
Science in Real Estate from the University of Hong Kong in December
1999. In February 2002, Mr. Lai further obtained a diploma in
building surveying from the College of Estate Management in the
United Kingdom, which is a long-distance programme. Mr. Lai was
also certified as a registered professional engineer by the Engineer
Registration Board in April 2006, and he was admitted as a member
of the Hong Kong Institution of Engineers and the Chartered Institute
of Building in December 2004 and May 2005, respectively.

Mr. Lai has over 24 years of experience in building service and
engineering. Mr. Lai joined Gammon Construction Limited in July
1998 and he was the assistant project manager when he left the
company in November 2007. He then worked at Hongkong Land
Limited, a property investment, management and development
group listed in London, Bermuda and Singapore, from November
2007 to July 2011 as an assistant project manager. In July 2011, Mr.
Lai joined a property developer as a project manager in Hong Kong
and he was a senior project manager when he left the company in
August 2017. In February 2018, Mr. Lai has joined a construction
company in Hong Kong as a project director.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The following are the senior management team of the Group:

Mr. LAW Pak Hin Edward (28 48 Iff ), aged 36, joined our Group
and was appointed as the chief financial officer of our Group on 12
September 2016, and as our Company Secretary on 14 February
2017. Mr. Law is primarily responsible for overseeing the finance and
accounting functions of our Group.

In July 2010, Mr. Law obtained a Bachelor of Commerce from the
Australian National University in Australia. He was admitted as an
associate of the CPA Australia in August 2010 and was further
admitted as a full member in July 2013. Mr. Law has more than 12
years of experience in finance and accounting. Before joining our
Group, Mr. Law has joined BDO Limited as an associate in December
2010 and he was an assistant manager when he left BDO Limited in
December 2014. Then he carried on his career with Ernst & Young
in December 2014 and he was a senior accountant in the assurance
department when he left the firm in August 2016.

Mr. CHAN Kai Ho (FR Bk &), aged 38, was appointed as a project
manager at Wing Fung HK in January 2018 and primarily responsible
for overseeing and managing project execution and operation.

Mr. Chan obtained a Master’s degree in Construction Law and
Dispute Resolution at The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2018
and a Bachelor’s degree in Building Services Engineering at The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2009. Mr. Chan has more than
13 years of experience in engineering including the experience in
relation to MVAC services. Mr. Chan began his engineering career as
an assistant engineer with a Hong Kong based company specialised
in construction and engineering related services from July 2009 to
July 2010. He then worked at Paul Y. (E&M) Contractors Limited from
2010 to 2017 with his last position being a project building services
engineer.
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Report of Directors
EEEHE

The Directors hereby presented their report and audited consolidated
financial statements for the Relevant Period.

CORPORATE REORGANISATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 September 2016 under the
Companies Law, Chapter 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and
revised) (the “Companies Law”) of the Cayman Islands.

The companies now comprising the Group underwent a
reorganisation (the “Reorganisation”) to rationalise the structure
of the Group in preparation for the Listing. Pursuant to the
Reorganisation, the Company became the holding company of
the subsidiaries now comprising the Group. Further details of
the Reorganisation are set out in the section headed "History,
Development and Reorganisation” in the Prospectus. The Shares
were listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange on 27 February 2018
(the “Listing”).

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
Group is principally engaged as a subcontractor for the provision
of supply, installation and fitting-out services of MVAC systems for
buildings in Hong Kong and Macau. The projects of the Group can
generally be categorised into private sector projects and public sector
projects. A list of the subsidiaries of the Company and details of their
principal activities are set out in note 29 to the consolidated financial
statements. There were no significant changes to the Group’s
principal activities during the year.

For discussion and analysis of these activities as required by Schedule
5 to the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) (the “Companies Ordinance”), including a fair review
of business, its key relationship with employees, customers, suppliers
and subcontractors, an indication of likely future developments in
the Group’s business and an analysis of the Group’s performance
during the year using financial key performance indicators, can be
found in sections headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”
set out on pages 7 to 15 of this annual report and the discussion of
its environmental policies and performance, can be found in section
headed “Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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The Group has established a set of risk management policies
and measures. The Group’s risk management process starts with
identifying the major risks associated with its business, industry and
market in the ordinary course of business. The Board and senior
management are responsible for identifying and analysing the risk
associated with their respective function, preparing and measuring
risk mitigation plans and reporting the status of risk management.
Details of principal risks and uncertainties faced by the Group are set
out on pages 11 to 12 of this annual report.

For the Relevant Period, the Group had continued to engage an
independent internal control consultant to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s internal control system and directly report to the
Audit Committee. For details, please refer to the paragraph headed
“Internal Control and Risk Management” under the section headed
“Corporate Governance Report” in this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH APPLICABLE LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

For the Relevant Period, the Group’s operations were mainly carried
out in Hong Kong and Macau. The Group shall accordingly comply
with relevant laws and regulations in Hong Kong and Macau and
the respective places of incorporation of the Company and its
subsidiaries. During the year and up to the date of this report, the
Board was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the business and
operations of the Group.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Relevant Period by
operating segment is set out in note 5 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the Relevant Period are set out in the
consolidated statement of comprehensive income on page 85 of this
annual report.

The Board did not recommend the payment of final dividend of the
Company for the Relevant Period to the Shareholders.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five years, as extracted from the consolidated
financial statements, is set out on page 168 of this annual report.

PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements during the Relevant Period in the plant and
equipment of the Group are set out in note 14 to the consolidated
financial statements of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements during the Relevant Period in the share capital
of the Company are set out in note 22 to the consolidated financial
statements.

On 3 December 2021, the Board proposed that every four (4) issued
and unissued existing shares of the Company of par value HK$0.01
each in the share capital of the Company would be consolidated
into one (1) consolidated share of par value HK$0.04 each in the
share capital of the Company (the “Share Consolidation”). The Share
Consolidation became effective on 21 January 2022. Immediately
after the Share Consolidation becoming effective on 21 January
2022, the authorised share capital of the Company has become
HK$1,000,000,000 divided into 25,000,000,000 consolidated shares
of par value HK$0.04 each, of which 162,250,000 consolidated
shares would be in issue which are fully paid or credited as fully paid.
For details of the Share Consolidation, please refer to the Company’s
announcements dated 3 December 2021 and 19 January 2022 and
the Company’s circular dated 30 December 2021.

RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, the Company’s reserve available for
distribution to the shareholders, calculated in accordance with the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately
HK$27,096,000.

EQUITY LINKED AGREEMENT

No equity-linked agreement was entered into by the Group or existed
during the Relevant Period.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
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Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short () EERESTBRAEARSG HERHG
Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares or Debentures REEENERRAR
As at 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of R-TBE-_—F+-_A=+—8 EBELK
the Directors and chief executive of the Company in the Shares, KRR ZREITHRABRAR G HH [
the underlying Shares or debentures of the Company or any B EE (ERXRRBBEMNENESR
of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV ENMBEEN ([FEHEREBEEM]) ZE
of the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the XVER) Bkt MR DR EEZF
Laws of Hong Kong)(the “SFO")), which were required to be BEAREZ S RIEERAIEXVERET
notified the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to REIHEME AR A RE R ATH S
Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including the interests R#xg (BIEREBERESRABEELE
or short positions which any such director or chief executive RERSHEFR R AERNER K
was taken or deemed to have under such provision of the SFO) KA SARIEE S K HE & 5 352
or which were required, pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, R AC BN FZ AR P 48 1Y & s i N A e 2 [
to be entered in the register referred to therein, or which were KB HIRIEGEM ETARRIZE5.46F
required, pursuant to standard of dealings by Directors referred SE7TIRMMIERBEEENRHFERANE
in Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules, to be notified to RRT R ERS RORE AT
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:
Number of the
Capacity/ hares held/ Long/short Percentage of
Name of Director Nature of Interest interested in  position Shareholding
R
EERERN
EEMNR B0 RERHE BROEBE & KB BEREIL
Mr. Chung Interest in controlled 83,062,500 Long position 51.19%
corporation (Note)
B G AR R (M) e
Note: Mt -

The 83,062,500 Shares are held by Wing Fung Capital Limited, which is an
associated corporation of the Company and wholly-owned by Mr. Chung.
Therefore, Mr. Chung is deemed to be interested in all the Shares held by
Wing Fung Capital Limited for the purposes of the SFO. Mr. Chung is our
executive Director, Chairman and Chief Executive Officer and the controlling
shareholder of the Company.

83,062,500 % % 1 B8 Wing Fung Capital
Limited$$ 8 - Z AR ARRRIBE AR « HEE
EEZERA A REFRBEROME -
§8 %t HE AR A Wing Fung Capital Limited AT #5
BRFBEROTPHEER - EXERNITES -
FERITBARE R AR AR
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, none of the
Directors or chief executive of the Company had registered
any interests and short positions in the Shares, underlying
Shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) (i)
which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which were taken or
deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (ii) which
were required to be notified to the Company and the Stock
Exchange pursuant to Rules 5.46 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing
Rules.

BEXFEEEN R —F+=
A=+t—H BEEERARARST
BABRARBRETAEEER CE
BERESRHEGERIEXVED) B9k -
HERDSEREES  BAANREE
HRBAEERMEXVEHBET7RE8HEHM
SARNR LB ERIOXR (B
REZHZLRAEGINEBRERFRE
B REANEDIORE) ¢ (i)
RIEGEM E M AR A5 5.46 £5.67 % 7B
HMERNRA| LB FAEERRR -

Substantial Shareholders’ and Other Persons’ Interests ) ETERFEREMATARS - HERSG
and Short Positions in the Shares, Underlying Shares and REEEFTHRIRKXE
Debentures
So far as the Directors are aware, as at 31 December 2022, the BEEHRMMN R_2-_—_F+=A
following persons/entities (other than the Directors and chief =t+—HB UTFTAL  EB(EEKAX
executive of the Company) had or were deemed to have taken NER=ITHRABRIN RIRG5 A8
an interest or short position in the Shares or underlying Shares Ry - AR BEEEGLER
which were recorded in the register of interests required to RATIMREES RAEGKOIZE33614E
be kept by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, FHEENERZLEMA  RBEEFHFX
or which would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of HIEIRDIEEXVEE 2 R E 3D AR
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO and the GEM Listing 5 GEM E#R AIE TH R amsox R -
Rules.
Number of the
Capacity/ Shares held/ Long/short Percentage of
Name of Shareholder Nature of Interest interested in  position Shareholding
s/
EERRN
RRERB B, RmtE BROBE &7 %KE BRED
Wing Fung Capital Limited Beneficial owner 83,062,500 Long position 51.19%

Wing Fung Capital Limited EmA A

7R




Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, no person,
other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company
whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’ and
Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in the Shares,
Underlying Shares or Debentures” above, had notified the
Company of an interest or short position in the Shares,
underlying Shares or debenture of the Company that was
required to be recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO or which
would fall to be disclosed under the provisions of Divisions 2
and 3 of Part XV of the SFO.

ARRANGEMENT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

At no time during the year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries
or any of its associated corporation a party to any arrangements to
enable the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition
of the Shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of the Directors, or their spouses or children
under the age of 18, had any right to subscribe for the Shares in, or
debentures of, the Company, or had exercised any such rights.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUPPLIERS AND
SUBCONTRACTORS

During the Relevant Period, so far as the Company is aware, the
aggregate revenue attributable to our five largest customers and the
largest customer accounted for approximately 98.3% (2021: 99.1%)
and 53.4% (2021: 57.9%), respectively, of the Group’s total revenue
for the Relevant Period. Our Directors consider our Group’s business
model is sustainable as we have been actively tendering for projects
and securing awards of contracts placed by various main contractors.
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for
approximately 58.7% (2021: 63.5%) of the Group’s total costs
of materials for the Relevant Period and the purchase from the
largest supplier included therein amounted to approximately 21.4%
(2021: 27.1%). Sub-contracting fees from the Group’s five largest
subcontractors accounted for approximately 69.8% (2021: 67.7%)
of the Group’s total subcontractor costs for the Relevant Period and
the sub-contracting fee from the largest sub-contractor included
therein amounted to approximately 25.4% (2021: 32.0%).
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None of the Directors nor any of his/her close associates (as defined
under the GEM Listing Rules) or shareholders (which, to the best
knowledge of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s
issued share capital), had any interest in the Group’s five largest
customers, suppliers and subcontractors during the Relevant Period.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the shareholders of the Company by reason of their holding of the
Company’s securities.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the Relevant Period and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors
Mr. Chung Chi Keung (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Ms. Lai Suk Fan

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Choy Hiu Fai Eric

Mr. Lei For

Mr. Lai Wai Ming

Further information regarding Directors’ emoluments is set out in
note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.

An annual confirmation of independence pursuant to the
requirements under Rule 5.09 the GEM Listing Rules has been
received from each of the INEDs.
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
CHANGES IN INFORMATION OF DIRECTORS

Updated biographical details of the Directors are set out on pages 58
to 62 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICES CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service agreement
with Company for a term of three years from 27 February 2018,
being the date on which the Shares are listed on GEM, subject
to further renewal, and will continue thereafter unless and until
terminated by the Company or Director or the Director has not
been re-elected as a director of the Company or has been removed
by shareholders of the Company at any of its general meeting or is
disqualified from acting as a director of the Company in accordance
with the articles of association of the Company. Each INED was
appointed under a letter of appointment for a term of three years,
subject to further renewal and unless terminated by the Company
or the INED in accordance with the terms as set out in the letter of
appointment. All Directors are also subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years pursuant to the requirements of the
Articles and the applicable Listing Rules. The service agreement of
each executive Director and the letter of appointment of each INED
have been renewed for another term of 3 years commencing from
27 February 2021 on the same terms and conditions.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors proposed for re-
election at the forthcoming AGM has or is proposed to have any
service contracts with the Company or any of its subsidiaries which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation, other than the statutory compensation.
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DIRECTORS’ RETIREMENT AND RE-ELECTION

Pursuant to Article 16.18 of the Articles, at every annual general
meeting, one third of the Directors for the time being (or if their
number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number nearest
to but not less than one-third) shall retire from office by rotation
provided that every Director shall be subject to retirement by rotation
at least once every three years. Any Director appointed pursuant
to Article 16.2 or Article 16.3 shall not be taken into account in
determining which Directors are to retire by rotation. A retiring
Director shall retain office until the close of the meeting at which he
retires and shall be eligible for re-election thereat. The Company at
any annual general meeting at which any Directors retire may fill the
vacated office by electing a like number of persons to be Directors.

Pursuant to Article 16.2 of the Articles, the Board shall have the
power from time to time and at any time to appoint any person
as a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to the
Board. Any Director so appointed shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible
for re-election at that meeting. Further, according to Article 16.3 of
the Articles, the Company may from time to time in general meeting
by ordinary resolution increase or reduce the number of Directors but
so that the number of Directors shall not be less than two. Subject
to the provisions of these Articles and the Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands, the Company may by ordinary resolution elect any
person to be a Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition
to the existing Directors. Any Director so appointed shall hold office
only until the next following general meeting of the Company and
shall then be eligible for re-election.

In accordance with Article 16.18 of the Articles, our executive
Directors, Mr. Chung Chi Keung and Ms. Lai Suk Fan, shall retire
by rotation at the forthcoming AGM and, being eligible, offer
themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS, CONTRACTS OF
SIGNIFICANCE

Save as disclosed in the Prospectus and elsewhere in this annual
report, no transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance
in relation to the Group’s business to which the Company or any
of its subsidiaries was a party and in which the Director or an entity
connected with the Director had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at any time during the Relevant Period.
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CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS

During the Relevant Period, save as disclosed in this annual report,
there were no contracts of significance between the Company or
any of its subsidiaries and any controlling Shareholders or any of
its subsidiaries or any contracts of significance for the provision of
services to the Company or any of its subsidiaries by a controlling
shareholder or any of its subsidiaries.

EMOLUMENTS OF THE DIRECTORS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 9 and 10 to the
consolidated financial statements in this annual report.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Remuneration Committee is set up for reviewing the Group’s
emolument policy and structure for making recommendation to the
Board on the overall remuneration policy and structure relating to all
Directors and senior management of the Group. The remunerations
of the Directors are determined by reference to the Group's operating
results, comparable market statistics, the responsibilities and duties
assumed by each Director as well as their individual performance.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS PLANS

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in Hong Kong
which comply with the requirements under the Mandatory Provident
Fund (“MPF"”) Schemes Ordinance. All assets under the schemes are
held separately from the Group under independently administrated
funds. Contribution to the MPF scheme follow the MPF Schemes
Ordinance.

The Group operates a defined contribution scheme in Macau which
complies with the requirements under the Social Security Fund
("FSS"). All assets under the schemes are held separately from the
Group under independently administrated funds. Contribution to the
FSS scheme follows Law no. 4/2010 (Social Security System).

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under the retirement benefits scheme
utilised to reduce future contributions.

Details of retirement benefits plans of the Group as at 31 December
2022 are set out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements of
this annual report.
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COMPETING INTERESTS

The Directors are not aware of any business or interest of Directors
nor the controlling shareholder of the Company nor any of their
respective close associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) that
compete or may compete with the business of the Group and any
conflicts of interests which any such person has or may have with the
Group during the Relevant Period.

NON-COMPETITION UNDERTAKING

The Company confirms that the non-competition undertaking given
by, amongst other, Mr. Chung and Wing Fung Capital Limited,
details of which were set out in the Prospectus, has been fully
complied and enforced since the Listing and up to the date of this
report. The Board also confirms that there are no other matters in
relation to the aforesaid undertaking which should be brought to the
attention of the Shareholders and the potential investors.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries have purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the
Relevant Period.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

Every Director shall be entitled under the Company’s Articles to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses
or liabilities incurred or sustained by him or her as a Director in
defending any proceedings, whether civil or criminal, in which
judgment is given in his or her favour, or in which he or she is
acquitted. Such provision was in force since the adoption of the
Articles upon the date of the Listing and remains in force as at the
date of this report.

The Company has taken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against the Directors.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Details of related party transactions of the Group during the Relevant
Period are set out in note 28 to the consolidated financial statements
in this annual report. None of the related party transactions
constituted discloseable non-exempted connected transaction or
non-exempted continuing connected transaction as defined under
the GEM Listing Rules during the Relevant Period.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

To the best knowledge of the Directors and based on the information
that is publicly available to the Company, at least 25% of the
Company’s issued capital was held by public as at the date of this
report.

AUDITOR

On 29 October 2021, PwC resigned as the Auditor. On the same
date, the Board appointed Mazars to fill the casual vacancy resulting
from the resignation of PwC and to hold office until the conclusion
of the next annual general meeting of the Company. Further details
can be found on the Company’s announcement published on 29
October 2021.

Save for the above, there were no other changes in the Company’s
auditor in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statements for the Relevant Period have
been audited by Mazars. Mazars shall retire at the forthcoming
AGM and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-appointment.
A resolution for the re-appointment of Mazars as the Auditor and to
authorise the Directors to fix their remuneration will be proposed at
the forthcoming AGM.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

During the Relevant Period and up to the date of this annual report,
the Company has complied with the applicable code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code") as set out in Appendix
15 of the GEM Listing Rules expect for the code C.2.1. For further
details regarding the compliance of the CG Code can be found in the
section headed “Corporate Governance Report” on pages 16 to 37
of this annual report.
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PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the
laws of the Cayman Islands which oblige the Company to offer new
shares on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Group were
entered into or in existence during the Relevant Period.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

During the Relevant Period, our Group made charitable donations of
HK$5,000. (2021: Nil)

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

No significant events have taken place subsequent to 31 December
2022 and up to the date of this report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

In order to ascertain the entitlements to attend and vote at the
AGM, the register of members of the Company will be closed
from Thursday, 8 June 2023 to Wednesday, 14 June 2023, both
days inclusive, during which period no transfer of the shares of
the Company will be registered. Shareholders of the Company are
reminded to ensure all properly executed transfer forms accompanied
by the relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s
branch share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Investor Services Limited,
at 17/F, Far East Finance Centre 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not
later than 4:30 pm on Wednesday, 7 June 2023.

On behalf of the Board
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
CHUNG Chi Keung
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2023
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

mazars
B E R W

To the members of
Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Wing Fung
Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together
the "Group”) set out on pages 85 to 167, which comprise the
consolidated statement of financial position at 31 December 2022,
and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Group at 31 December
2022, and of its financial performance and cash flows for the year
then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs"”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (the “HKICPA") and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements” section of
our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”),
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

B ZBERE

Mazars CPA LIMITED

B B (A U ) ot o 5 7 L
42nd Floor, Central Plaza

18 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong

T S VA 70 0 1 8 9% T BR B 400

Tel & : (852) 2909 5555

Fax 1L : (852) 2810 0032

Email % : info@mazars.hk

Website 4 : www.mazars.hk
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
Y8 3L AZ BUED

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we

do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Key audit matters

HEERER

FAREXEER

REBESZEXAE BRECFE/ES
BERANRAGAVBRRPIRERESTHE
BERNEZEEMBHRRILB UK E R
EREBLFREBNEEE MIe@ltEFS
HEBRLRER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEBERNNEERRERSEE

Revenue recognition on construction contracts
BEE KWz BT

Refer to Notes 2.18, 4 and 5 to the consolidated financial
statements
RERE UM BmEME2.18 - 4K%5-

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
revenue as recognised from construction contracts
amounted to approximately HK$184.0 million.
BE—_S_—_f+-_A=-1T—HLFE"
HENEROW R BK184.0EBET ©

EEEBEE

Revenue on construction contracts is recognised over time
by measuring the progress towards completion of the
Group’s performance obligations as set out in respective
contracts. The Group has used the output method to
estimate the progress of each performance obligation
satisfied over time by reference to the value of construction
works completed to date (as certified by external surveyors
or evaluated by internal project managers) as a proportion
of the total contract value of the relevant construction
contracts. In addition, contract value may also be subject
to changes due to variations of works, claims or disputes
with customers.

BESONKRNERTE EKENREBSHREE
MEANTRESERBER - ESEEHAHE LA
AAERETKBOREENEE  ET2RESTRNE
HLTREE (EINERSANRERANEEB LB
EHBARESVNESNEELD - kI SLHEET
AREEA TIZEAT - ARFERFHMUHMED -

We identified the revenue recognition on construction
contracts as a key audit matter due to the significance
of the amounts involved and the significant degree of
management’s judgement on the estimation of the total
outcome of construction contracts as well as the progress
towards completion of construction work.

BRI R BN EZ M ARRES DBRA B GEIA
MEETRTHREENABRERS  KMAERESH
KR ERETE RAREZEE -

Our key procedures, among others, included:
EENTERF (HPRE)BHE

(a)

obtaining an understanding of the Group’s control
processes and key controls over revenue recognition
on construction contracts;

TH BEEMEZEFREES OREREBOH
BRESIE :

enquiring the Group’s internal project managers and
check to the internal project manager’s evaluation
reports on the status of projects under construction
as selected on a sample basis to evaluate the
reasonableness of the progress towards completion
of the selected projects and to identify if there are any
variations of works, claims or disputes with customers
which may vary the revenue recognition on the
contracts;

M BEEEAMEELEESHLNAEIERKEH
AR EE R mEEERIER &R - ARHEE
FTHEENTKEERSEERHHRERBEMIRE

B3] MEREEFNALS  LARA OMHERT
B

agreeing the total contract value to the respective
signed contracts, variation orders or correspondence
with customers, on a sample basis;
MERHBESHNEERABRRSSH  TREFI<
HEE PR
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EERERNNEERARERER

(d)

Impairment assessment of trade receivables and contract assets

B SBNHEREKEERE T

verifying whether the value of work has been
reasonably recognised as contract revenue by
checking to the completion status specified in external
surveyor's reports and/or internal project managers’
evaluation reports, on a sample basis, to the value of
construction works as recognised by the Group; and
REIREEREGCABERREAOWE AR
MRS INDRI BRI RS & AEIE B LB TG
WEMMR TR E BEEEERNEETRER:
M

evaluating the competence, capabilities and objectivity
of the external surveyors who issued surveyor’s reports
for our selected samples of construction contracts.

AT 8 F RS BN B ORI 2 A R 5 59 90 6B
SHIRETED BEOREHREE

Refer to Notes 2.10, 3.1, 4, 16 and 17 to the consolidated Our key procedures, among others, included:

BENIRRF (HTERE) B

financial statements

BIGAMB®RERME210-31 -4 16%17 -

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s gross trade receivables
and contract assets amounted to approximately HK$35.1
million and HK$123.3 million respectively and the
provisions for impairment loss allowance on these trade
receivables and contract assets amounted to approximately
HK$2.2 million and HK$1.1 million respectively.
RZBZZF+ZA=+—H ' EXEENEZEHEKX
BRENEERRD PR3 IAEBTRI2ZZIAEE
BLLZEEHRRFARANEENREBREES
PRK22ESETRIIBSET -

(a)

(b)

understanding the internal controls relating to credit
control, debt collection and the ECL Assessment
(including the assessment on the methodology of
impairment and estimation of expected credit loss
allowance);

THEREEERRE KEMEHREEBBRFGOHNA
HeEE (BETHREREREEBEERBE MR
TE)

evaluating the reasonableness of the historical credit
loss rates as adopted by management in the ECL.
Assessment by checking, on a sample basis, the
past settlement history and subsequent settlement
information;

L EEENEREEERRTMEANBEEEER
BREEBEE  HERMBEREBEEMNTERRE
‘ENER
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Key audit matters

HEEXZER

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEZBERNNEERRERSEE

The Group applied the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to
assess lifetime expected credit loss allowance for trade
receivables and contract assets (the “ECL assessment”).
For the ECL assessment, management grouped trade
receivables and contract assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and estimated the expected credit losses
allowance to be recognised by considering the aging
profile of overdue balances, the repayment and default
histories of different customers, the historical credit loss
rates, the post-year end subsequent settlements from
respective customers, on-going business relationship with
the relevant customers and forward-looking information
relevant to customers’ ability to repay the outstanding
balances.
SEEBRAEEVBRELRZIORER T ENEES
EWHRIBERAHNEE BB EEEENE((RREEE
BRL ) - TEHEEBRMN Gh s EEESAEASE
UEERREBCESRERBARGNEESHE  IWiE
BERBEG RER TR%TP ZERRERRZ
¥ BAEEBRX XEPZFRERZEN - HEIEH
BEFZHBXBBARKET P EERERERENIEH
ZAIEMER %#%%$w2%%mgﬁﬁﬁﬁ°

We identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables and contract assets as a key audit matter due
to the significance of the amounts involved and the use of
judgement and estimates by the management in assessing
the ECL Assessment.

MR R EENEZEAREBBRTHIEHEES
BT R A 2 # i R (5 PS8 S RYGRIER S
NEEZRENEHEERAMAEERER -

(@

checking the aging profile of the trade receivables and
contract assets at 31 December 2022 and the post
year-end subsequent settlements from customers, on
a sample basis, to underlying accounting records and
supporting documents;

HEBRER _F-__F+-_A=+—BEZRERX

ERAHNBENRKBARETEFREERROAER
B B AR RS & 5 RO 8% M SR 3T

understanding the Group’s on-going business
relationship with the relevant customers through
discussion with management and corroborated the
information as provided by management to the
status of underlying projects, public information and
correspondence with the relevant customers; and
FREERENRUTRE EXEEABRTPNR
%%ﬁﬁ%&%ﬂgﬁﬁﬁkhﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁm
AR~ REER REBABTFHEM &

understanding and evaluating the management’s
process in identifying the relevant forward-looking
information for the ECL Assessment.
THRERIHERESHNNEREEBEN A
AIE BRI -



OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other
information. The other information comprises the information
included in the 2022 annual report of the Company but does not
include the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report
thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such
internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of
the Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2022
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AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is made solely
to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the
audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors of the Company.
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o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the
Group to cease to continue as a going concern.

o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within
the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision
and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate
threats or safeguards applied.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2022
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From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our
report because the adverse consequences of doing so would
reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of
such communication.

Mazars CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong, 27 March 2023

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is:

Fong Chin Lung

Practising Certificate number: P07321
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HEZZT-=F+=-A=1+—HILFE

REZTEHRER

2022 2021
—=-= B
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Biat FHET FET

Revenue g 5 184,020 174,824
Cost of sales $HE AR 7 (183,534) (182,044)
Gross profit (loss) EF (8) 486 (7,220)
Other income, net Ha A F58 6 5,652 1,087
(Provision) Reversal of impairment BHRWFIEREHNEERN

losses on trade receivables and FEEE (B #E) Bo

contract assets 7 (220) 374
Administrative expenses THRZ 7 (17,903) (16,826)
Expenses in relation to the transfer of ~ ##ik FH X

listing / = (448)
Operating loss K EE (11,985) (23,033)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 8 (1,830) (1,873)
Loss before income tax MRETEBATE R (13,815) (24,906)
Income tax credit FIEHiE® 11 2,616 3,083
Loss for the year FREE (11,199) (21,823)
Other comprehensive expenses for FRNHMEAEMZ - MNRHIE

the year, net of tax
Item that may be reclassified to AJREEF D ERm A -

profit or loss:

— Exchange differences on translation ~ —#EGINEFSHIE K =58

of a foreign operation (250) (44)

Total comprehensive expenses FREEBAZEHE

for the year (11,449) (21,867)

(adjusted)
L

Basic and diluted loss per share for FA QAR LEERFE AESG

loss attributable to the ordinary EBENEREXRAREBEFE

equity holders of the Company (R &)

(HK cents per share) 13 (6.90) (14.98)

The above consolidated statement of comprehensive income should

be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

A L4R A 2 EU R IR RIREMT T RE— OB -
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
e AR R R

At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H
2022 2021
—=E—-— T —F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
it FHExT FHT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Plant and equipment BB K & 14 376 505
Right-of-use assets FREEE 15 136 863
Deferred income tax assets BIEFTSEE 23 5,737 3,071
B .. _ %209 4439
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BHEE 16 122,235 117,361
Trade and other receivables, deposits & 5 [ H fth g I 718
and prepayments & MIERRIE 17 35,666 39,546
Current income tax assets BNERFTIS T & &= 805 853
Pledged and restricted bank deposits 2 18 & F R H R 1T 18 9,242 15,258
Cash and cash equivalents Be MBS EEY 18 12,047 10,653
____________________________________________________________ 179,995 183,671 _
Total assets EEHEE 186,244 188,110
LIABILITIES =N
Non-current liabilities kRBERE
Lease liabilities HEAE 15 - 132
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e BAR K
At 31 December 2022 R-ZT-_—F+=-A=+—H
2022 2021
—E—-— —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 FHET FHT
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade and retention payables H o ENFIEREMRE R 19 40,863 41,227
Other payables and accrued expenses — E i fiE {5 5k 18 & e 5+ & 20 5,261 6,112
Lease liabilities HEAE 5 141 749
Bank borrowings RITERK 21 38,353 26,815
_____________________________________________________________ 84,618 _____ 74903
Total liabilities BEAE 84,618 75,035
Net assets BEERE 101,626 113,075
EQUITY =
Share capital [N 22(i) 6,490 6,490
Reserves i 95,136 106,585
Total equity mER 101,626 113,075

The consolidated financial statements on pages 85 to 167 were % 85E 167 EMGEE N BHRREHKEFTTRN
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 —ZT_=F=H _++ Bt RKEH L

March 2023 and are signed on its behalf by: BHUATATREESE:
Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan EER BRF
Director Director EF EE

The above consolidated statement of financial position should be LA _E4RE BAFSHA R 7% 2 [RI BE B Bt 5 — F RIAE o
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-Z-=—F+-A=1+—HILFE

Exchange
Share Share translation Capital Other Retained
capital premium reserve reserve reserve profits Total

Bx  EfeE  ERRE  AARE  RtER  RERA fit
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKFOOD  HKFO00  HK$'000
TEL T TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL
(Note 22(ifa)) - (Note 22/i}b)
(W22006) - (Wi 22i))

Balance at 1 January 2021 R=B=-%-5-8
iF3 5,740 41,147 (523) 11,676 (12941) 79,691 124790
Loss for the year FREE - - - - - (21.823) (21.823)
Other comprehensive expenses A2ERR
- ltem that may be recassified to profitor - ~ATHEH FEEERH
loss EH
Exchange differences arising on translation & B EBELNES
of a foreign operation 8 - - (44) - - - (44)
Total comprehensive expenses ER2ERXER
for the year - - (44) - - 21823) (21,867)
Transaction with owners HEEANR S
Contributions and distributions #HRAE
Issue of shares upon placing of shareshore &R % %11R
220)a) (H22006) 750 10,050 - - - - 10,800
Transaction costs incurred in connection AR ERBELNT S
with placing of shares KA - (649) - - - - (648)
750 9402 - - - R
Balance at 31 December 2021 RZ8=-%+Zf
St-RES 6,490 50,549 (567) 11,676 (12941) 57,868 113,075
Balance at 1 January 2022 R=B-ZF
-A-AfES 6,490 50,549 (567) 11,676 (12,941) 57,368 113,075
Loss for the year ERER - - - - - (11,199) (11,199)
Other comprehensive expenses A2ERX
- ltem that may be reclassified to profitor - ~TH EHABZERS
loss EH
Exchange differences arising on translation &S EBELNES
of a foreign operation 4 - - (250) - - - (250)
Total comprehensive expenses ER2ERRAR
for the year - - (250) - - (11,199) (11,449)
Balance at 31 December 2022 R-BZZF+Zf
ST-AES 6,490 50,549 (817) 11,676 (12,941) 46,669 101,626

a5 L4

The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be A H4R& WS B Bh K e 8 RIBA P BT s —GTRIE -
read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

GEBRERNER

Year ended 31 December 2022 #HEZZT-=F+=-A=1+—HILFE

2022 2021
—=E—= —E-—4F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B FEx FHET
OPERATING ACTIVITIES REEH
Cash used in operations KEMARS 25@) (13,488) (3,103)
Income taxes paid EATFTIEH (1) (6,094)
Net cash used in operating RETBFTARSER
activities (13,489) (9,197)
INVESTING ACTIVITIES REED
Placement of pledged and restricted 7 P23 K& 2 R 5 8R 1T
bank deposits T (18) (157)
Release of pledged and restricted fEBR B R R R HIERTT
bank deposits T 5,971 5,100
Payments for plant and equipment TR K BT R (157) (18)
Interest received 2B 46 85
Net cash from investing activities ®REFEBHFEBRE
R 5,842 5,010
FINANCING ACTIVITIES BMEEH
Net proceeds from issue of shares RS R M B EITRMN
upon placing of shares FriS I8 )5 58 22(i)a) - 10,152
Proceeds from bank borrowings RITE RTS8 107,890 99,617
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITER (99,381) (108,091)
Repayments of lease liabilities EEHNEAR 25(c) (766) (857)
Interest paid 2R E (1,783) (1,779)
Net cash from (used in) financing BEFEFE (FTH) RESFEE
activities 5,960 (958)
Net decrease in cash and cash RERASEBYRDFE
equivalents (1,687) (5,145)
Cash and cash equivalents at the wEBVIRS KRS
beginning of the reporting period ZEY 4,127 9,257
Effects of exchange rate changes on  [EXEHEHHIR S KIF S
cash and cash equivalents SZEVNTE 52 15
Cash and cash equivalents at the HMEHMARESRES
end of the reporting period (net ZEY (MBREX)
of overdrafts) 18 2,492 4,127
The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in A H4rAH & R EREERBEMH E—HHE -

conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated in the Cayman Islands on 29 September 2016 as
an exempted company with limited liability under Companies
Law, Cap. 22 (Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised)
of the Cayman Islands. The address of the Company’s
registered office is PO Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands and the principal place of business
is Unit D, 21st Floor, Tower B, Billion Centre, 1 Wang Kwong
Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and its
subsidiaries (together, the “Group”) are principally engaged in
the provision of supply, installation and fitting-out services of
mechanical ventilation and air-conditioning ("MVAC") system
for buildings. The Company’s immediate and ultimate holding
company is Wing Fung Capital Limited, a private company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI").

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$"), which is the functional currency of the
Company.

The Company listed its shares on GEM of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited on 27 February 2018.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years
presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company
have been prepared in accordance with all applicable
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs"),
which collective term includes all applicable HKFRSs,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs”) and
Interpretations issued by Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA™) and disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
(the "CO") (Cap. 622). The consolidated financial
statements have been prepared under the historical cost
convention.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1

Basis of preparation (Continued)

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in
conformity with HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical
accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying
the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving
a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas
where assumptions and estimates are significant to the
consolidated financial statements are disclosed in Note 4
to the consolidated financial statements.

(a) New/revised HKFRSs applied by the Group

The Group has applied the following new/revised
HKFRSs for the first time for their annual reporting
period commencing on 1 January 2022:

Amendments to COVID-19-Related Rent
HKFRS 16 Concessions Beyond
30 June 2021

Amendments to Proceeds before Intended
HKAS 16 Use

Amendments to Cost of Fulfilling a Contract
HKAS 37

Amendments to Reference to the
HKFRS 3 Conceptual Framework

Annual Improvements 2018-2020 Cycle
to HKFRSs

The adoption of the amendments did not have any
significant impact on the significant accounting
policies of the Group and the presentation of these
consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Continued)

(b) Newr/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group

At the date of authorisation of these consolidated
financial statements, the HKICPA has issued the
following new/revised HKFRSs that are not yet
effective for the current year, which the Group has
not early adopted.

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 8

Amendments to
HKAS 12

HKFRS 17

Amendment to
HKFRS 17

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKFRS 16

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Disclosure of Accounting
Policies’

Definition of Accounting
Estimates'

Deferred Tax related to
Assets and Liabilities
arising from a Single
Transaction’

Insurance Contracts '

Initial Application of HKFRS
17 and HKFRS 9 —
Comparative Information’

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current?

Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants?

Lease Liability in a Sale and
Leaseback?

Sale or Contribution of
Assets between an
Investor and its Associate
or Joint Venture?
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M BHRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHFEHE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b) New/revised HKFRSs that are not yet effective
and have not been early adopted by the Group
(Continued)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2023

2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2024
3 The effective date to be determined

The Group will apply the above new/revised HKFRSs
when they become effective. The Directors do not
anticipate that the adoption of these new/revised
HKFRSs in future periods will have any material
impact on the Group’s consolidation financial
statements.

2.2 Subsidiaries and principles of consolidation

Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

Inter-company transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the
transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have
been changed where necessary to ensure consistency
with the policies adopted by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3 Foreign currency translation

()

(ii)

Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group’s entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (the “functional
currency”). The consolidated financial statements
are presented in HK$, which is the Company’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at period end exchange rates are
generally recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to
borrowings are presented in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income, within finance
costs. All other foreign exchange gains and losses
are presented in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income on a net basis within other
income, net.

2.

TESHHRME (&)

2.3 HhEmE

() HERZIEHE

HRAKEBETEERBOHY

MR IA R IR T

WEHNETBELERENER

(ITheeE®B D E -

&R AE T (AR 2 &)Y
MERZ2IEE) 25 -

(i) XZR#EE

SNER 5 BAK 5% B B IE

BERNEEE 4

R 5 MR R IE KB E LS
BitENEREERAGBHM
E A Y BB 3 W as I B 1R — AR

{5 5 A B RO I 5 e K S
BRES 2 E W& AR
B2 - A EAMER

Yo zs K B 18 LA R R

Iy as R ) E A A F RR

EXTK



2.

Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.3

2.4

Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

o assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that statement
of financial position;

o income and expenses for each statement
of comprehensive income are translated at
average exchange rates (unless this is not a
reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the
transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

o all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less
impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs of
investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted for
by the company on the basis of dividend received and
receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of
the investment in the separate financial statements
exceeds the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.5

2.6

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and
assessing performance of the operating segments,
has been identified as the controlling shareholder and
executive director of the Group who make strategic
decisions. Details refer to Note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

Plant and equipment

Plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less
accumulated depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition
of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line method
to allocate their cost to their residual values over their
estimated useful lives or, as follows:

Motor vehicles 4 to 5 years
Furniture and office equipment 5 years
Machinery 5 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.6

2.7

Plant and equipment (Continued)

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is
greater than its estimated recoverable amount (Note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by
comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are
included in profit or loss.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject
to amortisation and are tested annually for impairment,
or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash inflows which are largely
independent of the cash inflows from other assets or
groups of assets (cash-generating units). Non-financial
assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for
possible reversal of the impairment at the end of each
reporting period.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets

()

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets to be
measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised costs are non-
derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market.
If collection of the amounts is expected in one
year or less they are classified as current assets. If
not, they are presented as non-current assets. The
Group’s financial assets at amortised cost comprise
of trade receivables, other receivables and deposits,
pledged and restricted bank deposits and cash and
cash equivalents.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on trade-date, the date on which
the Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
Financial assets are derecognised when the rights
to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired or have been transferred and the Group has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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ARE MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-T-_—F+_A=+—HIFE

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

(iij) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss, transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction
costs of financial assets carried at fair value through
profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. Assets that are held for
collection of contractual cash flows where those
cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain
or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at amortised cost and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss
when the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest method.

The Group assess on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the Group
applied the simplified approach permitted under
HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime losses
to be recognised from initial recognition of the
receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.8 Financial assets (Continued)

2.9

(iv) Impairment (Continued)

v)

For other receivables and deposits, it is measured at
either 12-month expected credit losses or lifetime
expected loss, depending on whether there has
been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk of
a receivable has occurred since initial recognition,
then impairment is measured as lifetime expected
credit losses.

For cash and cash equivalents, pledged and
restricted bank deposits, it is also subject to
impairment requirements under HKFRS 9, yet the
impairment loss is immaterial because the Group
only transacts with reputable international financial
institutions with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are
over three years past due, whichever occurs sooner.
Financial assets written off may still be subject to
enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where
appropriate. A write-off constitutes a derecognition
event. Any subsequent recoveries are recognised in
profit or loss.

Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net
amount is reported in the statement of financial position
where the Group or group entities currently has a legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.10

2.12

Trade receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. They are generally due for settlement within
30 days to 45 days and therefore all classified as current.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
receivables with the objective of collecting the contractual
cash flows and therefore measures them subsequently at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash on hand and deposits held at call with
financial institutions with original maturities of three
months or less that are readily convertible to known
amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the statement of financial position.

Pledged bank deposits
Pledged bank deposits represent the amounts of cash
pledged as collateral to the banks for project bidding and

issuing performance bonds.

Pledged bank deposits are separately presented from
cash and cash equivalents.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.13

2.14

2.15

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new
share or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net
of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or
services that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Trade payables and other
payables are classified as current liabilities if payment is
due within one year or less (or in the normal operating
cycle of the business if longer). If not, they are presented
as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair
value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest method.

Borrowings and borrowing costs

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
amount is recognised in profit or loss over the period of
the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are
recognised as transaction costs of the loan to the extent
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until the
draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence
that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a prepayment for
liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

ARE MR M

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.15

2.16

Borrowings and borrowing costs (Continued)

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liabilities for at least 12 months after the reporting
period.

General and specific borrowing costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition, construction or production
of a qualifying asset are capitalised during the period of
time that is required to complete and prepare the asset
for its intended use or sale. Qualifying assets are assets
that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment
of specific borrowings pending their expenditure on
qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs
eligible for capitalisation.

Other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in
which they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income based
on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction
adjusted by changes in deferred income tax assets and
liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued)

()

(i)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period in the
countries where the Company and its subsidiaries
operate and generate taxable income. Management
periodically evaluates positions taken in tax returns
with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes
provisions where appropriate on the basis of
amounts expected to be paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the
liability method, on temporary differences arising
between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and
their carrying amounts in the consolidated financial
statements. However, deferred income tax liabilities
are not recognised if they arise from the initial
recognition of goodwill. Deferred income tax is also
not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition
of an asset or liability in a transaction other than
a business combination that at the time of the
transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable
profit or loss. Deferred income tax is determined
using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting
period and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only if
it is probable that future taxable amounts will be
available to utilise those temporary differences and
losses.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHFEHE (&)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.16 Current and deferred income tax (Continued) 2.16 EPHAREIEFTBH (&)

EFE TS # ()

(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued) (ii)

Deferred income tax liabilities and assets are not
recognised for temporary differences between the
carrying amount and tax bases of investments in
foreign operations where the company is able to
control the timing of the reversal of the temporary
differences and it is probable that the differences
will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
where there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current income tax assets and liabilities and where
the deferred income tax balances relate to the
same taxation authority. Current income tax assets
and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and
settle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred income tax is recognised in
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity. In this case, the tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity, respectively.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.17 Provisions

Provisions for legal claims, service warranties and make
good obligations are recognised when the Group has a
present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as a
whole.

A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an
outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure required
to settle the present obligation at the end of the
reporting period. The discount rate used to determine the
present value is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due
to the passage of time is recognised as interest expense.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

o the customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance
as the Group performs;

o the Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

o the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the
Group has an enforceable right to payment for
performance completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group's unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the
same contract are accounted for and presented on a net
basis.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FES:HFEHE (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18 Revenue recognition (Continued) 2.18 W&=ER (&)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement
of progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a
performance obligation is measured based on output
method, which is to recognise revenue on the basis of
direct measurements of the value of the goods or services
transferred to the customer to date relative to the
remaining goods or services promised under the contract,
that best depict the Group’s performance in transferring
control of goods or services.

Transaction price: significant financing components

When the contract contains a significant financing
component (i.e. the customer or the Group is provided
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer of
goods or services to the customer), in determining
the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
consideration for the effects of the time value of money.
The effect of the significant financing component is
recognised as an interest income or interest expense
separately from revenue from contracts with customers in
profit or loss.

The Group determines the interest rate that is
commensurate with the rate that would be reflected in
a separate financing transaction between the Group and
its customer at contract inception by reference to, where
appropriate, the interest rate implicit in the contract (i.e.
the interest rate that discounts the cash selling price of
the goods or services to the amount paid in advance or
arrears), the prevailing market interest rates, the Group’s
borrowing rates and other relevant creditworthiness
information of the customer of the Group.

The Group has applied the practical expedient in
paragraph 63 of HKFRS 15 and does not adjust the
consideration for the effect of the significant financing
component if the period of financing is one year or less.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.18

2.19

Revenue recognition (Continued)
Variable consideration

If the consideration promised in a contract includes a
variable amount, the Group estimates the amount of
consideration to which it will be entitled in exchange
for transferring the promised goods or services to a
customer. The variable consideration is estimated by
using either the expected-value or the most-likely-
amount method whichever is better to predict the
entitled amount. The estimated variable consideration is
then included in the transaction price only to the extent
that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the
amount of cumulative revenue recognised of the contract
will not occur when the uncertainty associated with the
variable consideration is subsequently resolved.

Employee benefits
(a) Pension schemes

Payments to defined contribution retirement
benefit plans and the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme are recognised as an expense when
employees have rendered service entitling them to
the contributions.

(b) Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at
the undiscounted amount of the benefits expected
to be paid as and when employees rendered
the service. All short term employee benefits are
recognised as an expense unless another HKFRS
requires or permits the inclusion of the benefit
in the cost of an asset. A liability is recognised in
respect for benefits accruing to employees (such
as wages and salaries, annual leave and sick leave)
after deducting any amount already paid.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.19 Employee benefits (Continued)

@

(d)

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer
of those benefits and when the Group recognises
restructuring costs involving the payment of
termination.

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses based on a formula that takes
into consideration the profit attributable to the
Company’s shareholder. The Group recognises
a provision where contractually obliged or
where there is a past practice that has created a
constructive obligation.

2.20 Leases

Leases are recognised as right-of-use assets and
corresponding liabilities at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in the
contract to the lease and non-lease components based
on their relative stand-alone prices. However, for leases
of property for which the Group is a lessee, it has elected
not to separate lease and non-lease components and
instead accounts for these as a single lease component.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. FESHHFEHE (&)
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Leases (Continued) 2.20 HE (&)

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities include
the net present value of the following lease payments:

o fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

o variable lease payments that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

o amounts expected to be payable by the Group
under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group
is reasonably certain to exercise that option; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liabilities.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20 Leases (Continued)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

o where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting point,
adjusted to reflect changes in financing conditions
since third party financing was received,;

o uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free
interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
by the Group, which does not have recent third
party financing; and

o makes adjustments specific to the lease, e.g. term,
country, currency and security.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss
over the lease period so as to produce a constant periodic
rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liabilities
for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

] the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs; and

. restoration costs.

2.
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2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

2.20

2.21

2,22

Leases (Continued)

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on a
straight-line basis. Payments associated with short-term
leases of equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-
value assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases with
a lease term of 12 months or less.

Dividend distribution

Dividend distributions to the Company’s shareholders
are recognised as a liability in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in the period in which the dividends
are approved by the Company’s or operating companies’
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with all
attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and
recognised in the profit or loss over the period necessary
to match them with the costs that they are intended to
compensate.

2. FESTHEEME (&)

2.20

2.21

2.22
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: interest rate risk, currency risk, credit risk and
liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk management
approach focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects
on the Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk

()

Interest rate risk

The Group’s cash flow interest rate risk relates
primarily to variable-rate bank balances and
restricted bank deposits as disclosed in Note
18 to the consolidated financial statements
and bank borrowings as disclosed in Note 21
to the consolidated financial statements due
to the fluctuation of the prevailing market
interest rate. The Group is also exposed to
fair value interest rate risk in relation to the
Group’s fixed-rate pledged bank deposits
as disclosed in Note 18 to the consolidated
financial statements. The Group’s cash flow
interest rate risk is mainly concentrated on
the fluctuation of interest rates on bank
balances and Hong Kong Prime Rate quoted
by the lending bank arising from the Group’s
HK$ denominated borrowings. The Group
aims at keeping borrowings at variable rates.
The Group currently does not have a policy
on hedging interest rate risk. However, the
management monitors interest rate exposure
and will consider hedging significant interest
rate risk should the need arise.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a) Market risk (Continued)

()

Interest rate risk (Continued)
Sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analysis below has been
determined based on the exposure to interest
rates for variable-rate bank borrowings. The
analysis is prepared assuming the amount of
liability outstanding at each reporting period
end was outstanding for the whole year. A
100 basis point increase or decrease is used
which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in interest
rates. If interest rates had been 100 basis
points (2021: 100 basis points) higher/lower
and all other variables were held constant,
the Group’s loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 would increase/decrease by
HK$384,000 (2021: HK$268,000).

No sensitivity analysis has been prepared
for the exposure to interest rate risk on the
Group's bank balances and restricted bank
deposits as the directors of the Company
consider that the exposure is minimal.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)
(i)~ Currency risk

The Group's exposure to currency risk mainly
arises from the fluctuation of HK$ against
the functional currency of a subsidiary of the
Company that has adopted Macau Pataca
("MOP") as functional currency and has
foreign currency denominated monetary
assets denominated in HK$. The management
closely monitors foreign exchange exposure
to mitigate the foreign currency risk. As
MOP is pegged to HK$, the Group’s foreign
currency risk exposure is not considered to be
significant.

Credit risk

Credit risk of the Group mainly arises from trade
receivables, contract assets, other receivables and
deposits, pledged and restricted bank deposits,
cash and cash equivalents. The carrying amounts
of these balances except cash on hand in the
consolidated statement of financial position
represent the Group’s maximum exposure to credit
risk in relation to its financial assets.

Cash and cash equivalents and pledged and
restricted bank deposits

The majority of the Group’s bank balances
are placed in financial institutions which are
independently rated with high credit ratings.
Management does not expect any losses from non-
performance by these financial institutions as they
have no default history in the past.
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MKRRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 UBEREREZE(E)

(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GCERE (&)

Other receivables and deposits

Other receivables and deposits are also subject to
the impairment requirements under HKFRS 9. It
is measured as either 12-month expected credit
losses or lifetime expected credit loss, depending
on whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant
increase in credit risk of a receivable has occurred
since initial recognition, impairment is measured as
lifetime expected credit losses. The Group also take
into account forward-looking information in the
impairment of the other receivables and deposits.
At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the identified
impairment loss for other receivables and deposits
is assessed to be minimal.

Trade receivables and contract assets

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach
to measuring expected credit losses which uses a
lifetime expected credit loss allowance for all trade
receivables and contract assets without financing
components.

To measure the expected credit losses, trade
receivables have been assessed based on credit
risk characteristics of the customers with reference
to a wide range of factors such as default rates
of customers, aging profile of overdue balances,
the repayment and default histories of different
customers, on-going business relationship with
the relevant customers and forward-looking
information that affecting the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances.
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MBERERE &)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HiIBRBEE(E)
(b) Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GEREAE (&)
Trade receivables and contract assets (continued) EBZREWAEREEE
(&)
The Group has separated two customers with FETHEBEEEBER K
doubtful credit rating from the other customers EEEKMBEENRAT
with low risk credit rating in the determination RNEFPEHEMEENRA
of the expected credit losses and fully provided BRERBHOEFSHA  WLHRE
for the trade receivables of HK$2,000,000 (2021: W E Z FE Y518 2,000,000
a customer of HK$1,773,000) for the year. For BLT(ZEZ—F:—8F
the other customers, the loss allowance at 31 F1,773,0007% 7T) fEH & &
December 2022 and 2021 were determined as BE -pAMEPME RN
follows for trade receivables: —EZZFRZFT = —
+—A=+—H EHEK
HENEBEREBEENT
Gross
Expected  carrying Loss Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount allowance amount  impaired
FEFEE KREAE FERE BEFE FEAE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THAT THT TET
Trade receivables at RZE-ZF+ZR
31 December 2022 =t-BZE%
FEWIE
Not past due Nl 0.3% 27,152 (81) 27,071 No &
Within 30 days overdue BAH0KRA 0.6% 1,897 (12) 1,885 No &
30 days to one year overdue BEKRE—F 1.0% 309 6) 306 No &
Over one year overdue BEEA—F 2.9% 3,701 (107) 3,59 No &
Balances excluding two customers  5t8 S 1EH 2 B E
fully provided for VAT 4 4 33,059 (203) 32,856
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

3.

BEEREE (&)

3.1 BBEKREE (&)

(b) EEmEE (&)

ESREUKERENEE
(%&)

Gross
Expected carrying Loss  Net carrying Credit-
loss rate amount  allowance amount impaired
BHERE KERE HEEE RODFE GHAE
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TET TET THEL
Trade receivables at 31 RZB=--F+=A
December 2021 =+-HzE%
B R
Not past due ZSaki 0.3% 30,169 (90) 30,079 No &
Within 30 days overdue BE30AR 0.6% 2,120 (13) 2,107 No &
30 days to one year overdue BH0RE—F 2.9% 830 (24) 806 No &
Qver one year overdue BEREE—F 2.9% 3,721 (108) 3,613 No £
Balances excluding a customer  HEEF{EH 2 HEE
fully provided for MAOME) 36,840 (235) 36,605

The contract assets relate to unbilled work in
progress and have substantially the same risk
characteristics as the trade receivables for the
same types of contracts. The Group has therefore
concluded that the expected loss rates for trade
receivables are a reasonable approximation of the
loss rates for the contract assets. The expected
credit losses below also incorporate forward-
looking information such as macroeconomic factors
affecting the ability of the customers to settle the

receivables.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued)
(b) Credit risk (Continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets (continued)

The Group has separated a customer with doubtful
credit rating from the other customers with low risk
credit rating in the determination of the expected
credit losses and fully provided for the contract
assets of HK$686,000 (2021: HK$689,000) for the
year. For the other customers, the loss allowance at
31 December 2022 and 2021 were determined as
follows for contract assets.

3. M¥EkREE(E)

3.1

¥ EREE (&)

(b) EEmEE (&)

ESRENKEREEE
(#&)

NEEEBETHEBEERHRR
BH— B AREREEFENE
FHEEMAEERREETHR
WEFSHA  YBRERAH
B E 686,000 (=T =—
% :689,000/8 L) fEH &
HEE REMEPME

RZBEZZERZT=—F
+ZAZ=Z+—H8 AHEBE

BERBEGETOT
Weighted
Gross average
carrying expected Loss  Net carrying
amount loss rates allowance amount
E¥H
ARHE FHEEZ EEEE REFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TET THET
Contract assets at 31 December RZ-ZE--f+=H
2022 ST-HNENEE
Balances excluding a customer fully LB F{EH 2 BB fE SN
provided for ke 122,602 0.3% (367) 122,235
Weighted
Gross average
carrying expected Loss  Net carrying
amount loss rates allowance amount
METY
BERE EHEEX EEEE EEFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TAR TET
Contract assets at 31 December RZ-ZE=-F+=4
2021 ST-BNENEE
Balances excluding a customer fully L& P {EH 2 B SN
provided for ok 117,714 0.3% (353) 117,361
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FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(9

Liquidity risk

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management
rests with the directors of the Company, who have
built an appropriate liquidity risk management
framework for the management of the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements. The Group manages
liquidity risk by maintaining adequate reserves and
borrowing facilities, by continuously monitoring
forecast and actual cash flows and matching the
maturity profiles of financial assets and liabilities.

The table below analyses the Group's financial
liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining period at the consolidated statement
of financial position date to the contractual maturity
date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the
contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due
within 12 months equal their carrying balances, as
the impact of discounting is not significant.

3.

BEEREE (&)

3.1

% EREE ()
(0 wEBEZEME

ARREFRERBESRE
REBCRREME LEH
AEBZEH THEEH
EeEBERhRBETERR
KEILEEZRBESER
EEER - NEBEBBRE
ERFARERRERER
EHPBEERBENDIH
Bh - BBRERTERZFRE
LREEREREERDES
e

TEBAKENMBABR
RuraMBEHRRREER
EAMNIMANRRHRS
R AERA R 2 BRAR R IHETT DA
TREBNESER/BLORM
RRGRE -BNMATE
WARERXR - PR 1218 A REIH
MERE R EREAAR o

On demand or

less than Between
1year 1 and 2 years Total
RERD
DR1E 1225 gy
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
FET FHET FET
At 31 December 2022 R=-ZTE=-_=fF+=HA
=+—H
Trade and retention B S RNHIER
payables FERRE S 33,435 7.428 40,863
Other payables H M ET IR 1,713 74 1,713
Bank borrowings RITIE K 28,889 - 28,889
Lease liabilities HEBRE 144 - 144
Bank overdrafts RITEX 9,555 L 9,555
73,736 7,428 81,164
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3.

(CONTINUED)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

P ERERE (&)

¥ EREE (&)

(0 wEBEZERE(E)

On demand or

less than Between
1 year 1 and 2 years Total
REsRke
L1 1226 HEt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHT FHET FHET
At 31 December 2021 R=—Z=—%+=A4
=t+-—H
Trade and retention E P RENFIER
payables FERRE 2 30,895 10,332 41,227
Other payables H b pE A F00E 1,754 - 1,754
Bank borrowings RITIE 20,718 - 20,718
Lease liabilities HERRE 766 144 910
Bank overdrafts RITEX 6,526 - 6,526
60,659 10,476 71,135

Bank borrowings with a repayment on demand
clause are included in the “on demand or less than
1 year” time band in the above maturity analysis.
At 31 December 2022, the aggregate undiscounted
principal amounts of bank borrowings and
overdrafts amounted to approximately
HK$38,444,000 (2021: HK$27,244,000). Taking

LWEEEBHASTE &

RERKEBBRIAOEITE
AR BRel D1 F ] R
MR- R=—FE=-_—_F+=H1
—t+—B RITEERE
SHAMBEASBELEY
38,444,000 L (=T = —
127,244,000 7T) © K& E

into account the Group’s financial position, the
directors do not believe that it is probable that the
bank will exercise its discretionary right to demand
immediate repayment. The directors believe that
such bank borrowings and overdrafts will be repaid
in one year (2021: two years) after the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the bank borrowing
agreements.

EBAEBNBMGEHKIL BS
RABEBITTIRAESITER
HEEERABER - S
RAE - RERITERGH
HETEZEH  AEET
BERBESBREBEBERE
—F(ZEZ—F:-WF)E
B o



Wing Fung Group Asia Limited 123
Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
A M mARME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 3. MKRRERE (&)
(CONTINUED)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 UBEREREZE(E)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued) () REBELEE (&)

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8H

2022 2021

=== —E—F

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHTT

On demand or within one year BERIN—F RN 38,444 23,287

1 to 2 years 1226F — 3,957

38,444 27,244

3.2 Capital risk management 32 EXEKRER

The Group manages capital to ensure that entities in the AEBEEEERNUBRAEE
Group will be able to continue as a going concern while BETEREERBELEEES
maximising the return to the shareholders through the E-RNERABLERRKRET
optimisation of the debt and equity balance. The Group’s BRBEARRE R KAEEH

overall strategy remains unchanged from prior year. BEEREE B SR E ARSI -
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3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.2 Capital risk management (Continued)

Total capital of the Group is calculated as total equity
plus total borrowings (including total interest-bearing
borrowings and lease liabilities). The Group’s gearing
ratio, which is calculated by dividing the total borrowings
by total equity at the year-end date. The gearing ratio of
the Group was as follows:

3.

P ERERE (&)

3.2

EXmpER (8

REEBMBRERNTYIREEZR NG
BR(BEFEEFAEREESR
B8 - AEEMELABBELE
TR EEHEEENAERG AR
BRiTE - AEEMNEEBERL
RO

At 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—E—= T4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Total borrowings BER 38,494 27,696
Total equity i 101,626 113,075
Gearing ratio BEARBREE 37.9% 24.5%

The gearing ratio increased from approximately 24.5%
at 31 December 2021 to approximately 37.9% at 31
December 2022, primarily due to the increase in the
total interest-bearing borrowings which was due to the
drawdown of revolving loans and bank overdrafts during
the year and the decrease in total equity resulting from
the decrease in retained profits attributable to recording
a net loss for the year ended 31 December 2022.

The directors of the Company review the capital structure
on a regular basis. As part of this review, the directors
of the Company consider the cost of the risk associated
with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of the directors of the Company, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through the payment of
dividends, new share issues as well as the issue of new
debts or repayment of existing debts.

BEABBH R _-_TE-—F+=
A=+ —H®#%245% % MNE =
T+ -AZ=Z+—HBHHH
37.9%  FEZERRFTEEERE
B RAEARFNIRIEITE
BRIFITES  RiESEER D
RAABHZE_ZT__F+=A4
T+ —ALEFEABBSFEEERES
RE BRI -

ARBEFTEHRMTERRE -
ZMAN B BARBERTE
B & EE KRR H9AE B AR e B
e RIBARFIEENHEBEZS
AEEKEBATBE  BITH
B ARBETHEHXEERE
B FOEEREARRE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(CONTINUED)

3.3 Fair value estimation

The carrying values of trade receivables, other receivables
and deposits, trade and retention payables, accruals and
other payables, bank borrowings and lease liabilities
are a reasonable approximation of their fair values. The
fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes
is estimated by discounting the future contractual cash
flows at the current market interest rate that is available
to the Group for similar financial instruments.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the
future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition,
seldom equal the related actual results. The estimates and
assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below:

(a)

Construction contracts

Management measures the progress towards completion
of the Group’s performance obligations based on
output method, which is to recognise revenue on the
basis of measuring the progress of each performance
obligation satisfied over time by reference to the value
of construction works completed to date as a portion
of the total contract value of the relevant construction
contracts. The management’s estimate of revenue and
the progress of construction works requires significant
judgement and has a significant impact on the amount
and timing of revenue recognised.

3. M¥EkREE ()

3.3

AFEE

B 5 B WA - B R R
T B S ENKERENRE
& ERE R R E AR
RITERREBERBENREER
HERAFENGEBOBE-FR
BERZ MBAENAFETS
BAKERBUN B TAASH
ERMBANEHAROERSR
BREE AR

4. EEGEAETRAE

AEBERREL G RERE - BN
SRHEREER  ROGHEBRE
RER - SIBRTEATBRFEANEER
BEMNEREEBEEARAEEZARMNG

SHREBRBLT -
(@) REAW

EEEBENEEBEAFTEASETK
BROEEMEE EB2RIE
SETKEETIREEGEEBARE
EENBENEBENRDERRE
AEERERNBETEREREARW
moBHEMRERELETRE
EEFBEEAHE - I HE ER
WHN SR MREAEEERTE
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

Construction contracts (Continued)

Management periodically measures the value of the
construction works completed for each construction
project based on results as certified by external surveyors
or evaluated by internal project managers and estimates
the value of works completed but yet to be certified
at the end of each reporting period. Management
estimates the value of uncertified works based on surveys
carried out by internal project managers and certain
projects maybe revisited with reference to certification
subsequently performed by external surveyors.
Management’s estimation of the value of the works may
also be subject to changes due to variations of works,
claims or disputes with customers. The Group regularly
reviews and revises the estimation of construction
contract progresses whenever there is any change in
circumstances.

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The Group follows the guidance of HKFRS 9 to determine
the expected credit loss for trade receivables and
contract assets. Significant judgement is exercised on
the assessment of the lifetime expected credit losses
for the trade receivables and contract assets (i.e. ECL
assessment). For the ECL assessment, the Group has
grouped trade receivables and contract assets with similar
credit risk characteristics and estimated the expected
credit losses allowance by considering a wide range of
factors such as aging profile of overdue balances, the
repayment and default histories of different customers,
the historical credit loss rates, the post-year end
subsequent settlements from respective customers, on-
going business relationship with the relevant customers
and forward-looking information that affecting the
customers’ ability to repay the outstanding balances.
At every reporting date, the expected credit losses
are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. Details of the assumptions
and inputs used are discussed in Note 3 to the
consolidated financial statements.

4,

EEGhat R & (&)

(a)

(b)

BEAW (A

i)

REBREHR - EEBERIEIE
RIBRMAZ B S M ERIE B K2R
MERTHINSHEZELABEE
EXKEETIRENEE Lk
ExEKIEREZENTRREER-
EEEREAGEE EEETH
RERFTRERETRENEE
KETIEB A 2RINERR 260 H
BRETHREENES -BEEE
HTREEMNAEIETREER
RIEHEZT P A4 m 5l L &
BARE ARBETHENRE
EMERESEF BRI ETREES
IR

ESRURARGNEENRE

AEBBREBVHEREEAFE
BHESIBEE HBERARS
MEEMRHREERE -FHE
SRBFAREGHNEENZHTR
HEEEERTEE A E (B3R
HEEEENG) - HEREEES
BiEmME  AREKABFEU
EERRFBZEZBERER
BREENHE AFEBEREAH
BB ZREBL TREPZE
REENES  BEEEBERE -
BEEPZEREZREN R
EPHNFHEXBRARTERRP
BEREEGRENNRELE
HEZHREE A BHEES
BRE RERESAH A&E
EFFEEREREEEREEAN
BIEE MO E S - FTE A RR
R ABBEFBREE B HREK
B FE3 &7 ©



Wing Fung Group Asia Limited
Annual Report 2022

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

AR B B IS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group's revenue are derived from the provision of supply,
installation, and fitting-out services of MVAC system for
buildings to external customers in Hong Kong and Macau
during the year. For the purposes of resources allocation and
performance assessment, the chief operating decision maker
reviews the overall results and financial position of the Group
as a whole prepared based on the accounting policies as set
out in Note 2 to the consolidated financial statements. The
Group has only one single operating segment and no further
analysis of this single segment is presented.

5.

AEEO KRB FARES SRS
MEFPHNEFRHEKMBERZEH R
M IE  RERREKERS - RERD
ERERFENE  TELEERRAE
BN GR E H) B B8 S AE e M A (IR 1B
REMBHRRMT 22BN S HBRR
) AEEREE-KLEHMRLE
2IZE DR EMB DT o

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—BLFE

2022 2021

=== =R —dE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&ET F#&T

Revenue from construction contracts EEA W 184,020 174,824

The Group's revenue is recognised over time for the years
ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Unsatisfied construction contracts

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) at 31 December
2022 and 2021 and the expected timing of recognising
revenue are as follows:

REBEE-_S-_—_FR-_FT-_—F+_A
ZT—BUHFE AEEEHEER

Ny
S o

RBITEEEN
RZBEZZFR=ZT=-_—F+=A

—+—HREEHRTEHET CREX
D REK) IR B ERFERK =K
TEHRRS RN T -

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—EB-—F B4
HK$°000 HK$'000
FHERT FHTT

Revenue from construction contracts to be #5 7R A EEA H Uz
recognised

Within one year —FR 116,797 237,709
More than one year BiE—F = 25,661

127



128 HEEETMNERLDT
—E_FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RS R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION Wk oIpER (F)
(CONTINUED)
Geographical information it 38 & R

The following table provides an analysis of the Group’s revenue

TREIIREBEFPHIEME IR AN E

from external customers based on geographical location of the EINBE P YD
customers:
Year ended 31 December
BE+t=-B=+—HLEE
2022 2021
—E-_—F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Hong Kong B 144,673 163,068
Macau P 39,347 11,756
184,020 174,824

The following is an analysis of the carrying amounts of non-
current assets, excluding deferred income tax assets, analysed

TRAREEMENMIBLE S D K3
MBEE (TBREECHEREE) WK

by the geographical area in which the assets are located: E{EDHT
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—~H
2022 2021
—E-= —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHERT TET
Hong Kong BB 235 746
Macau B P 277 622
512 1,368
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT INFORMATION 5. WaEkoEER (8&)
(CONTINUED)
Information about major customers FTEEFER
Revenue from customers contributing over 10% of total REBAEBETERAUZE10% A @Y
revenue of the Group are as follows: BERPWENAT
Year ended 31 December
BZ+-BA=+—HILLEE
2022 2021
—sE-= ===
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Customer A EPA 98,290 101,281
Customer B ®FPB 35,857 51,116
Customer C EFC 35,802 N/A TNE R
! Revenue from the customer is less than 10% of the total revenue of L BE-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HLEEE
the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021. BEPWmEIRAERBY R 10% ©
OTHER INCOME, NET 6. HiWAFE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-ZHA=+t—HBLEFE

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET

Bank interest income IRITH B HA 133 165
Government subsidies (Note) BT aL (i) 5,587 933
Net exchange loss X (E1E) W58 (68) (11)
5,652 1,087

Note: The amounts represented the anti-epidemic fund received from
the Hong Kong SAR government and the Macau SAR government
amounted to HK$5,587,000 (2021: the Hong Kong SAR government
amounted to HK$666,000 and the relief fund received from the
Construction Industry Council amounted to HK$267,000).

Miat - £ 5B BB R BT ORI E B
BB & & E £ 5,587,000 7T (=
T F AEEREBRFESHHE
EE S 666,000 T K BEEEFESI
BB HOEE 2 267,000 7T) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

7. EXPENSES BY NATURE 7. BHEEEIMNRAX

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—HLFE

2022 2021
—E-—F B
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
Costs of materials MR AR 74,717 55,949
Subcontractor costs DB KA 88,830 102,999
Employee benefit expenses (Note 9) EEBMRAZ (H7E9)
— Directors’ remuneration (Note 10) —EBEHN (W 10) 7,812 6,822
— Direct labour —EEST 16,147 16,986
— Administrative staff —1THET 3,224 3,008
Provision (Reversal) of impairment losses ‘& 5) & Uk 35X T8 ok (B /5 18 B 1
on trade receivables (@) 205 (425)
Provision of impairment losses on contract & 497 2 Bl {8 &5 18 s 4
assets 15 51
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2B 57 B
— Audit services — B ARTE 680 680
— Non-audit services —ERE R 22 22
Depreciation of plant and equipment W E R R AETE (M 14)
(Note 14) 284 407
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CREEENE (Mt 15)
(Note 15) 727 812
Operating lease rentals in respect of HEMESEEERN KL
minimum lease payments of rented KEHERES
premises 323 379
Expenses in relation to the transfer of R TR
listing - 448
Legal and professional fees EEREEER 2,681 2,321
Travelling expenses ERFAX 484 452
Other expenses =g 5,506 8,033

201,657 198,944
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

8. HIBEA

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—BLEE

2022 2021
—E-—F =Rl —tE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Finance costs B # R AR
— Interest on bank borrowings —RITE A B 1,340 1,351
— Interest on bank overdrafts —RITBEXLF B 462 467
— Interest on lease liabilities (Note 15) —MHEABANB (Wit 15) 28 55
1,830 1,873

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES

9. BERAAEX

Year ended 31 December

BE+=-ZHA=1+t—HLFE

2022 2021

—E-__F B

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Wages, salaries, bonuses and allowances T & - & - {E4T K2 BE 26,577 26,137
Pension cost — defined contribution RIRE AR — FE AT S

scheme 606 679

27,183 26,816
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE-—ZT-—F+_-_A=+—HILEE

9.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

The Group participates in a defined contribution scheme which
is registered under the Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance. The assets of the schemes are held
separately from those of the Group, in funds under the control
of trustees. For members of the MPF Scheme, the Group
contributes at the lower of HK$1,500 per month or 5% of
relevant payroll costs each month to the MPF Scheme, which
contribution is matched by the employee.

The Group operates a defined contribution retirement scheme
for eligible employee in Macau. The assets of the scheme are
held separately from those of the Group in funds under the
control of an independent trustee. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses
when they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited
by those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contributions.

The total expenses recognised in profit or loss of HK$606,000
for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$679,000)
represents contributions paid and payable by the Group at rates
as specified in the respective rules of the above mentioned
schemes.

BERNMAX (&)

AREE B 2 AR bR 08 Bl 1 D8 & 5 BB
RIUMBHIMELTEHE ([REESF
g EMeERMAREE - R EME
EEARENEEDRIFE  BEFEA
UNESEE - -pBESFAEAXEMS -
KB E A 121,500 7T 5k A8 7 3 B K
KZ5% (ABIKE BZE) [BREE S
e - MEB TMEHRF S EAHER

AEBEFRMIEEREERE N EHRNK
RRETE - ZEENMBEERBLETA
EENETHEAREDRFTAE - H—
B AEBEBEEMNRET - #
AR ERASEER/AMY - 1R
% 5B B A BR JB 11 SK An B B AT I A
2 U B R R >

BE-_E-_—_F#+-_A=1+—HI=FE
PAIB 25 MR A B L 4258 606,000 7T (=
T~ —4F 679,000/ T) IEAREE L +
MET MR O FTF BN R EE N R E
R -
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EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(CONTINUED)

Five highest paid individuals

The five highest paid individuals of the Group included two
directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: two
directors), details of whose remunerations are set out in
Note 10 to the consolidated financial statements. Details of
the remuneration for the year of the remaining highest paid
employees who are neither director nor chief executive officer
of the Company are as follows:

BERAAX (&)

EEEEHFMAL

BE_Z-_—_F+-A=1+—RHILEE -
AEEREGESTMALREREZES
—E-—F WMBES) EHMMFE
BERAGRETBHRERMTI0-FA - H
HEEFNEE (TEARAESTIH
BITHAR) EFMEEEET :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+t—BLFE

2022 2021

=== =R —dE

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&ET FETT

Salaries and other benefits e hEMmEH 2,492 2,548
Contribution to retirement benefits RARAE FET B R

scheme 54 54

2,546 2,602

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
director or chief executive officer of the Company whose
remuneration fell within the following bands is as follows:

BHAAREERRSTEALBHH
BRU AR &S HMIES % E
mF -

Number of employees

EE"AR
2022 2021
—EFE__ T T —
Nil to HK$1,000,000 = % 1,000,000 T 2 2
HK$1,000,001 to HK$ 1,500,000 1,000,001 7 7T 2 1,500,000 7% 7T 1 1

During the year, no emoluments were paid by the Group to the
directors of the Company or the five highest paid individuals
(including directors and employees) as an inducement to join or
upon joining the Group or as compensation for loss of office.

FR AKERERNARBESTHAOA
RRFMAL(BREZERESR) IFH
T ERIMARIIARS B & 2Rk
TR BER (S
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10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS 10.

(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE CO (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP.622G)

(a)

Directors’ emoluments (included as key
management compensation)

The remuneration of the directors is set out below:

For the year ended 31 December 2022

BEERBERER (BEEBAD
BMEBI (BBEDE622EF)
FE3BK_R(AT(BEES
FMEER) BB (FEBEHIE
622GE) WEREE)

() EEME GIAERTEEEER
)

SEFMHEIIMT

BE_-_f_—_F+-HA=+—H
ILFEE

Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
BiTES BUkHTES
Mr. Chung
Chi Keung Ms. Lai Mr. Choy Mr. Lai
("Mr. Chung")* Suk Fan Hiu Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total
ErEr  RAFLt  ERERE AREE  RE®HEE @
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TERL TET TR TR TERL
Fees He - - 180 180 180 540
Other emoluments e
— Salaries and other benefits -HeREMER 4,976 1,235 - - - 6,211
- Discretionary bonus WL 440 585 - - - 1,025
— Contribution to retirement benefits —RIKER GBI
scheme - 36 - - - 36
Total &3t 5,416 1,856 180 180 180 7,812
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383
OF THE CO (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES
(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION
(CAP.622G) (CONTINUED)

(a) Directors’ emoluments (included as key
management compensation) (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2021

10. EENEZRER (REBEFB(D
BERG) (BB EHIE622EF)
E383HFR(AT(HEES
FEER) BB (FBEHE
622GE)NWERKE) (&)

(a)

EEME GFAERTEEERER
B) (&)

HE=-F-—F1=-HA=1—-H
LFE

Executive directors

Independent non-executive directors

WTES BUEHTES
Ms.Lai  Mr. Choy Hiu Mr. Lai

Mr. Chung* Suk Fan Fai, Eric Mr. Lei For Wai Ming Total

BhEr  BRALL  EBBLAAE FREE  BREBEE e

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000

TAR TAR FAL FET FHT TAT

Fees we - - 180 180 180 540

Other emoluments Htfis

— Salaries and other benefits ~He R HEpER 3,669 1,095 - = - 4,764

- Discretionary bonus -EEEa 1,000 471 - 4 - 1,471
— Contribution to retirement benefits ~ —iR /KB FIH Bl

scheme 13 34 - - - 47

Total it 4,682 1,600 180 180 180 6,822

* Mr. Chung is the Chief Executive Officer of the Group for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Discretionary bonus was determined with reference to
the Group’s operating results and individual performance.

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
both executive directors of the Company reduced part of
their remuneration for the respective years; while none of
the independent non-executive directors of the Company
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration for the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

2 BRERBE-_T-_—_FR=F
T—F+-A=+—-HLFER
REBWITHRER

BIBIEATI2EARAEBMNEE X
BREARBEMETE -

RBEZZS__FR-_T=—%
+-—A=Z+—BLFE  AQF
MERITESHURIPSEFEN
B HB: mAR BB IERTT
EEHMERERRERERZ=
T FR=FT=—%+=A
=+ —HIEFENERMBH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

10. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS
(DISCLOSURES REQUIRED BY SECTION 383

OF THE CO (CAP.622) AND COMPANIES

(DISCLOSURE OF INFORMATION ABOUT
BENEFITS OF DIRECTORS) REGULATION

(CAP.622G) (CONTINUED)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

Directors’ retirement benefits and termination
benefits

Save as disclosed in Note 10(a) to the consolidated
financial statements, the directors did not receive any
other retirement benefits or termination benefits during
the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group
did not pay consideration to any third parties for making
available the directors’ services (2021: Nil).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of the directors, bodies corporate
controlled by and connected entities with such
directors

At 31 December 2022, there are no loans, quasi-
loans and other dealing arrangements in favour of the
directors, bodies corporate controlled by and controlled
entities with such directors (2021: Nil).

Director's material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Save as disclosed in Note 28 to the consolidated financial
statements, no significant transactions, arrangements
and contracts in relation to the Group’s business to which
the Group was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

10.

ESNERER (REEB(Q
ARG (&8 EHI 55 622 F)
E3HER(AB (KEES

MmER) KA (FREHF

622G E) WERHE) (&)

(b)

(o)

(d)

(e)

ESNERAEFNRERER

BREiRE BB HmEM T 10) T
BEN EEREBEE_T =
T A=+ —BIEFEILEWER
HMEmERAREN KB BERN (=
T —FE) o

RESESERBEMEAE=FEH
HHE

HE-_Z-_—_F#+=-A=+—H
IHFE AEETERESES
fREMAERNE =X HRE (=
T —F &)

FHNESE EENIZEHZEE
FREEERARBTANER £
EXREMRZHNESR

RZEZ_ZF+ZA=+—8"
BENES ZEENIEHEE
AZmHBEEATEAMER
EERREMRGEH(ZT=—
F4E) o

ESRXE  RHFHAEHNTHNE
Rz

BRARA B EHRERM T 28T E S
I RRREEWMERFRLE
ET-__F+ZA=+—8HI1E
FENTANEFENURNER
BRI BERAEBEKEH
MNEARS THERAEHNSHSE
EESEENEARERZ (ZT=—
FoE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

The amount of income tax (credit) expense credited/charged
to the consolidated statement of comprehensive income

represents:

11. FTIEHIER

RiFEE2ERERAET A HBRBMRE
B(ER) XM :

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—BHLFE

2022 2021
—E_— —ET -4
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Current income tax: BERFTIS Y

Hong Kong profits tax BEENEN = =
Macau complementary tax BPIPTISFH T 50 =
Over provision in prior years BT EHBERE = (379)
50 (379)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) IRIEFTIS L (BT 2E23) (2,666) (2,704)
Income tax credit FriSfiik e (2,616) (3,083)

(i) Hong Kong profits tax (i) BFBINEH

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill
2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered profits
tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28
March 2018 and was gazetted on the following day.
Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the first
HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity
will be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million
will be taxed at 16.5%. The profits of group entities
not qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5% (2021:

16.5%).

R-ZE—-NEF=A=-+—HB F
BEEBRB T —ERE (B
D) (7% ([ ERD -3l AWM
BAGBHESE - ZERRZE
—NEFE=ZA=-Z+NHEEKAE
ZARZHTEZER -REMR
FEHHE GEREEETREN
& 2,000,000 % 7T & F| 15 LA 8.25%
B R B - M #8 2,000,000 7%
TC 2 MG LA 16.5% BT R AR o
REFEMBFEHEGEES
MEBEEEMNRMNEERZHH
R165%(ZFBE-—F :16.5%) %
i o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

11. INCOME TAX CREDIT (CONTINUED) 11.

(i) Macau Complementary Tax

Pursuant to a tax incentive approved under Section 20 of
Decree Law No. 11/2016, Macau Complementary Tax is
levied at a fixed rate of 12% (2021: 12%) on the taxable
income above MOP600,000 (approximately HK$583,000)

of the Group’s operations in Macau.

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled
to the loss before income tax per the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as follows:

FreBiER ()

(i)

R AEHRER

RIERPIESE11/2016 58 55 20
B AT E 2 RIS E R - BPIB
#5498 3B 600,000 08 F9 #8 (4
583,000/ L) W) 72 & B R P E 1%
MEZRERWAILI2% (= —
F 1 12%) B E R R -

FAMGHRERAEEE 2ENK
&R PTE R P S B AT B R E BRI
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+t—-HLFE

2022 2021
—E_—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
Loss before income tax B ET1S TR & 18 (13,815) (24,906)
Tax calculated at the applicable REAREGTENTIE
tax rates (2,649) (3,779)
Expenses not deductible for AT 07 A 2
tax purpose 986 1,138
Income not subject to tax BEARBIBA (970) (154)
Over provision in prior years BT RS - (379)
Others HAh 17 91
Income tax credit SR e (2,616) (3,083)




12.

13.
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AR B B IS R M A

For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

DIVIDENDS 12.

No dividend was declared or paid by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE 13.

Basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss attributable
to owners of the Company by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares in issue during the year.

Hﬁ /%\

ARARRBE_ZE-_—_F+-_A=1+—
BIEFETET RS MEMBRE (=
T —F ) o

BREARBEESR

BRERABREARRREA ARIGER
BRAFAERTERRMNEFOHETE

B -

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=t—BHLFE

2022 2021
—E_-__ SeE = —s
(Adjusted)
(KA
Loss attributable to owners of NARHE ANEGERE
the Company (in HK$'000) (F#&1) (11,199) (21,823)

Weighted average number of ordinary BT mR e

shares in issue (Note) 8 () 162,250,000 145,708,904
Basic loss per share BREREE
(HK cents per share) (BB (6.90) (14.98)

Diluted loss per share is equal to the basic loss per share since
the Company has no dilutive potential shares during the year
ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

Note: This is derived from the weighted average number of ordinary shares
of 582,835,616 in issue during the year ended 31 December 2021
after taking into account the effect of the share consolidation with
effect on 21 January 2022 (Note 22(i)(b)).

AABRBE_E_—_F+-_A=+—
BIEFERE LB EEERENRD (=
T —F ) e

B W ERE - —F+_A=+—
AEFEERTETERZMEFHH
582,835,616 k5T & + Wit KR HE HFR
—E-—E-A-+—R4ERFE (M
£22(3i)(b)) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #

=

FH-A=+—RILLFE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. #ESNEE
Furniture
Motor and office
vehicles equipment Machinery Total
ER R
RE WAERE AR mat
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHT FHET FHET
Year ended BE-Z2—-—F%
31 December 2021 +=—A=+—H
LFE
At 1 January 2021 R-T-—F
—H—H 503 392 - 895
Exchange differences [ERER (1) - - (1)
Additions = - 18 - 18
Depreciation e (273) (134) - (407)
At 31 December 2021 WZZEZ—%F
+=ZA=+—H 229 276 - 505
At 31 December 2021 R-ZB-Z—F
+=BA=+—H
Cost B 7R 1,211 779 - 1,990
Accumulated depreciation EEE (982) (503) - (1,485)
Net book amount BRADF(E 229 276 - 505
Year ended gEz—-%——
31 December 2022 aie=g'=~4— H
LFE
At January 2022 A =———
—H—H 229 276 - 505
Exchange differences EHER (1) (1 - (2
Additions NE - 28 129 157
Depreciation e (160) (121) 3) (284)
At 31 December 2022 nWZE—-—
+=—A=+—H 68 182 126 376
At 31 December 2022 R-ZB-ZH+=A
=+—H
Cost (DN 1,209 805 129 2,143
Accumulated depreciation EEtiE (1,141) (623) 3) (1,767)
Net book amount BREHE 68 182 126 376
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

14. PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

15.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, depreciation of
HK$284,000 were charged to “administrative expenses”
and “cost of sales” (2021: HK$407,000 were charged in
“administrative expenses”) in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

LEASES

0}

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position relating to leases

14. #BERRE (E)

15.

2T —F+_A=+—HItFE "
PrE 284,000 TR A 2 E W= K &Y
[TTERAS I RIEEKRAN] AR (ZF
— —4 407,000 7T R [T B X
RIER) °

HE

() BREERFEHBRRREIN
=8

2022 2021
—E-—F =R = =
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Right-of-use assets EREEE
At 1 January n—H—H 863 1,265
Additions NE - 410
Depreciation e (727) (812)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 136 863
Cost AR 2,068 2,068
Accumulated depreciation E ik (1,932) (1,205)
Net book amount BRMEFE 136 863
Lease liabilities HEEE
Current Vi) 141 749
Non-current IR ED = 132
141 881

During the year ended 31 December 2021, additions to
the right-of-use assets were HK$410,000.

BE_Z-_—Ft& A=+—
BIEFE AENFEREEES
410,000/ 7T °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

(i)

(iii)

15. HE (&)

Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (i) BREERGFEETERBREIN
of comprehensive income relating to leases -}
Year ended 31 December
BE+-A=+—-HLEFE
2022 2021
—E-= T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt F#&T FHT
Depreciation of right-of-use CREEENE—
assets — office premises MAEYE
(included in administrative GTATTEAX)
expenses) 7 727 812
Interest expense (included in MEFXZ
finance costs) (BT ABF TS ) 8 28 55
Expense related to short-term  H5ZHiEH BEAH X
leases (included in cost of (GFASHE B A K&
sales and administrative THEHZ)
expenses) 7 323 379
During the year ended 31 December 2022, the total HE-_T-_—_F+=ZRA=+—
cash outflow for leases were HK$1,089,000 (2021: AEFE - HEMNBEsRLASE
HK$1,236,000). 741,089,000 T (ZE = —F:
1,236,000/ L) °
The Group’s leasing activities and how these are (i) *EENEESETHREARSRN

accounted for

The Group leases office premises. Rental contracts are
typically made for fixed periods of 1 to 2 years with no
extension option.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

AEEEBBATYE A —
BRI Z2EMBETERTL
SEEE -

HERFZENEEGHEES
Z IR R ER R A& - HE W&
WEEMEMRY  HEEE
MERESHOEARE -HE
BENMSAEEROER R -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS

6. BHNEE

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-—F =Rl —tE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH T FHT
Construction contracts EEAEYD 123,288 118,403
Less: Provision for impairment loss R EE R
allowance (1,053) (1,042)
122,235 117,361

The contract assets primarily relate to the Group’s right to
consideration for work completed and not billed because the
rights are conditional on the Group’s future performance.
Included in contract assets are retention receivables. Retention
receivables arise from the Group’s construction project and
are held by customers in order to provide the customers
with assurance that the Group will complete its obligations
satisfactorily under the contracts, rather than to provide
financing to the customers. They are generally settled within a
period ranging from one to two years upon the completion of
construction work. The contract assets are transferred to trade
receivables when the rights become unconditional. The Group
typically reclassifies contract assets to trade receivables on the
date of payment certificates issued by the customers when
such right of collections becomes unconditional other than the
passage of time.

At the end of the reporting period, the contract assets that
are expected to be recovered after more than 12 months are
HK$18,973,000 (2021:HK$22,070,000), which represented
the retention receivables. The remaining contract assets are
expected to be recovered within 12 months.

EHMEETREAKRERERT RN
R IREBMAREZENER  BRZ
BAMBURRAKEHNHRRE - ANE
ERRERRES - BRRESIIEE
BAKBEZZEHBERBEFFA &
ARE P REASRE R RIEA QB
TREME MAFAEFEHEBME - —
MRBETIRRIENT —FEMFERA
RS - BN REIGHE  G0EF
EBBREEHREGIA AESEBEE
BEPZLNREEE B EZBERNK
AEGRGE (EEEREBERINBREL
BEEFDERESREFA -

RER&EHIR  FEFTERBBI121EA &K
O /A #EEE18,973,0008 T (=&
— —%F : 22,070,000 7T) © 15 E U (R
B MHpeNEERHBR12EAR
U@ -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

16. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED) 16. EHNEE (#)
The movements of contract assets (before loss allowance and RAFEBBTBEREENEISHER
excluding those arising from increases and decrease both EZEPERNNENEEEE (MK
occurred within the same year) from contracts with customers EEBEER  TRER—FERNELEZ
within HKFRS 15 during the year are as follows: B ADFEI B #B) T
2022 2021
—E-—F B
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHExT T
At 1 January n—H—H 118,403 101,558
Transferred to trade receivables EREE ZEIGUR (27,007) (11,803)
Recognition of revenue I e TR 31,892 28,648
At 31 December R+Z—A=+—8H 123,288 118,403
Movements in the loss allowance on contract assets are as AHEEBBERENEHNOT
follow:
2022 2021
—=E-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
At 1 January ®n—H—H 1,042 992
Impairment loss recognised B RRREEE 15 51
Exchange differences EHER (4) (1)
At 31 December R+=—A=+—H 1,053 1,042
Details of the impairment assessment for the years ended 31 HE_T-_—_FRr-_FT=-—F+=A
December 2022 and 2021 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to the =+ - B IEFENRENEFBHNER

consolidated financial statements. BB RERMIFESAD) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HZE=ZT==

16. CONTRACT ASSETS (CONTINUED)

17.

The retention receivables (net of loss allowance) to be settled,
based on the expiry of retention period, at the end of the

reporting period are:

V=

16. EHEE (&)
REEEE - RBE

AR B B IS R M A

F+-A=+—HLEE

BHEmFEER

W RE S (INREEEE) A

2022 2021

=== =ER = =

HK$°000 HK$'000

FET FHT

Within one year —F A2 16,700 12,830
After one year —F 15 5| H 18,973 22,070
35,673 34,900

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS

17. ESREMEBERFTIE RERK

BNRE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F Tz £
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FEx FHET
Trade receivables (Note i) B S EWEIE (K aEi) 35,059 38,613
Less: Provision for impairment loss B ORE R B
allowance (2,203) (2,008)
32,856 36,605
Other receivables and deposits (Note i) Efh e IB MR & (Bt i) 1,323 1,291
Prepayments B FRIE 1,487 1,650

35,666

39,546
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

0]

Trade receivables

Trade receivables arise from the provision of supply,
installation and fitting-out services of MVAC system for
buildings. The Group grants a credit period ranged from
30 to 45 days to its customers. The following is an aging
analysis of trade receivables based on valuation dates
of payment certificates or reports net of provision for
impairment loss allowance at the end of the reporting
period:

17. ESREMEBERFIE BERK
AN RKE (8)

0}

B 5 EWE

B 5 WG IR IR R R EF W
BELRTEHARGHEE TRK
HERE AEERERFET
MNEEHNTFI0BE458 I X
B E BARAB R SRE PR k3R
SHERENE S ERFBRE
DT (BRIREBIEEE)

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E_—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHT
0 to 30 days 0%30H 11,453 12,826
31 to 60 days 31260H 17,069 19,360
61 to 90 days 61290H 740 -
91 to 180 days 91£180H - -
181 to 365 days 1812365 H - 806
1to 2 years —EMF 3,594 3,613
32,856 36,605
The fair value of trade receivables approximate their BHRWHEN AT EEELERET
carrying values. BAES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES,
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
(CONTINUED)

0}

Trade receivables (Continued)

The carrying amounts of trade receivables are
denominated in the following currencies:

17. ESREMEBERFTIE REK
B RE (&)

0}

8 5 BWRE (8)

# 5 i 430 R B0 R T 1A 516
WA

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 23,026 30,226
MOP SR 9,830 6,379
32,856 36,605

Before accepting any new customers, the Group assesses
the potential customer’s credit quality and defines credit
limits by customer. Credit limits granted to customers are
reviewed periodically. Management of the Group closely
monitors the credit quality of trade receivables and
considers the majority of the Group’s trade receivables
that are past due but not impaired have good credit
quality with reference to respective settlement history.

BEMEAHELA AEEEG
HEEEPMEREERMEEP
REEERH YEHBART
EFMEERB - AKEEEE
TUERESRYFANEEER
= URBEHEBEMSLZE  RE
AEBRHBOEBBERBEN
BHRUEFEBEELRRYS
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
RE RS R M T

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

17. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, 17. ESREMEWNRIE - RER
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS RN RKIE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(i) Trade receivables (Continued) (i) EZEWFHEE)
Movements of the provision for impairment loss B RWHRBREEEREN
allowance on trade receivables are as follows: R
2022 2021
—E=-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET
At 1 January n—H—H 2,008 2,435
Impairment loss (Reversal) recognised & =2 & &5 18 (#[@l) 205 (425)
Exchange differences EHER (10) )
At 31 December W+=ZA=+—H 2,203 2,008
Details of impairment assessment for the years ended 31 BE_ZT__§k-_FT_—F
December 2022 and 2021 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to T+ A=+ —HUEFERNRBET
the consolidated financial statements. HHEBHNEE W BIRERN T
3.1(b) °
(i) Other receivables and deposits (i) HtEWRERES
The fair value of other receivables and deposits EH R IE&BZ/:EE@ AN
approximate to their carrying values. HEEEERE

Details of impairment assessment for the other receivables
and deposits for the years ended 31 December 2022
and 2021 are set out in Note 3.1(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

BE_ET-_—_Frk-_F=-—%F
+T_A=+—HULEFE HiE
B RIESHRETGEEH
RERE B SRR EE3.1(b) ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

18. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 18. B R SR&IETEFHU

AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REESRESEEY

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHET FHEIT
Pledged bank deposits EEMBITER 7,000 12,028
Restricted bank deposits SRR HISRITIE R 2,242 3,230
9,242 15,258
Cash and cash equivalents BeMREZEEY 12,047 10,653
Bank overdrafts (Note 21) RITHEX (H7E21) (9,555) (6,526)
Balances per consolidated statement of 4R AIRERER VNS
cash flows 2,492 4127

The pledged bank deposits represent deposits pledged to banks
to secure banking facilities granted to the Group (including
overdraft and trade facilities) with maturity within one year
from the end of the reporting period and is therefore classified
as a current asset. The pledged bank deposits carried interest at
a fixed rate at 1.55% per annum at 31 December 2022 (2021:
0.6% to 1.55% per annum).

The restricted bank deposits represent cash held at banks as
security for due performance under several service contracts of
MVAC system for buildings with prevailing market interest rate
ranging from 0.125% to 3.18% per annum at 31 December
2022 (2021: 0.01% to 0.25% per annum) (Note 26).

BRI ERIEE T FIRTUE
RAEBERBTERE(BEEIRE
SR MTER RREHRBH —F
AEE - A EARESEE - RN
T F+ZA=+—H 8EFRTT
BFERIEI155%MEFEFEF R B (ZF
——F FFR06%ZE1.55%) °

ZREIRITFRIE TR RITHIRS -
EREFEBBREREARZSANE TR
BAENHBEHRFSER RNZT=—
F+ZRA=+—HMBIIMHENEN
F0.125% £3.18% (ZE = —4F : &£ 7
£ 0.01% £0.25%) (fizr26) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

18. PLEDGED AND RESTRICTED BANK DEPOSITS 18. S R Z R 4B TE U

AND CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS RAERREEEY (&)
(CONTINUED)

The carrying amounts of pledged and restricted bank deposits EERARZRHRTEREBE SRR S
and cash and cash equivalents approximate their fair values and LEYHEAEAQFERE  WAT
are denominated in the following currencies: P EHEEHE -

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FER FAT
HK$ BT 11,507 12,935
MOP RPTEE 227 6,450
11,734 19,385
19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 19. EZERNREREBSRES
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT
Trade payables Z 5 e RIE 26,048 25,370
Retention payables FEfTIRE & 14,815 15,857
40,863 41,227
The credit period of trade payables granted by subcontractors SEHRHERTE S EMNFERL S
and suppliers range from 30 to 60 days upon the issue of EEH BN THEEZELBRFFRHMN

ey

invoices or application of interim payment generally. Fi&E30FE60H °
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES
(CONTINUED)

The following is an aging analysis of trade payables based
on the invoice dates or the dates of application of interim
payment, as appropriate.

19. EZBAREREBEMSREE

(&)

AT HIEARIZ R A s B 8 R
BH (W@ ) & B NIRRT

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—~H
2022 2021
=== —E—F
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FHT
0 to 30 days 0&30H 12,654 15,587
31 to 60 days 31260H 5,470 5,155
61 to 90 days 61290 H 3,513 1,264
91 to 180 days 91% 180 H 3,077 17
181 days to 1 year 181HE—F - 642
Over 1 year HBid—F 1,334 2,705
26,048 25,370

Retention payables to subcontractors are interest-free and
payable at the end of the defect liability period of individual
contracts, normally one year from the completion date of the

respective project.

et D B rRE S AR S AR ER
BRREMTER (—RAEHEE T
X B EREE Rt — ) XA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

19. TRADE AND RETENTION PAYABLES 19. ESRENRERENRE S
(CONTINUED) (&)

The retention payables are expected to be settled, based on
the expiry date of the defect liability period, at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

REBFREMERBH  BNRESEDR
RBERRNGERIFROT

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2022 2021
—=E—-— —EC—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
F#&ET FAET
Due within one year —FREE 7,387 5,525
Due after one year —F1E I 7,428 10,332
14,815 15,857

The carrying amounts of trade and retention payables
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the
following currencies:

5 M8 IR K A 4R [B] & B B B 22
HRAFERE  LATIEEE :

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—=E_— —E-—%F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
HK$ BT 32,903 34,267
MOP SEL P 7,960 6,960
40,863 41,227
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

20. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED 20. Hitt BN REAREE A
EXPENSES
At 31 December
R+=—A=+—8
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FAET
Accrued staff costs fEsH B TAKA 3,548 4,358
Other accrued charges HMEER 1,364 1,340
Other payables E M E AT FOR 349 414
5,261 6,112
The carrying amounts of other payables and accrued expenses, Hih B RIBE R T & A (HIBR BT 5
net of accrued salaries, approximate their fair values due to B)NAFEEHEREERSE BRH
their short maturities. Other payables and accrued expenses are HRRERFE - Hith B RIB R FEET B A
denominated in the following currencies: THEHEEETE

At 31 December

R+=—HA=+—8
2022 2021
—E-= —E—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT
HK$ BT 4,345 5,175
MOP SR P 916 937

5,261 6,112
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21. BANK BORROWINGS 21. WITHER

At 31 December

R+=A=+-8
2022 2021
—g-—f —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT

Secured: BEA

— Bank borrowings —IRITIER 28,798 20,289
— Bank overdrafts - IR{TEX 9,555 6,526
38,353 26,815

BRI RIE - BMURTTIE R R FER
HEREEEARD

The fair value of the bank borrowings approximates their
carrying amount as the impact of discounting is not significant.
RITERRBEZ TN MEENELAT

The bank borrowings and overdrafts due for repayment are as

follows:
At 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2022 2021
—==-= T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAET
On demand or within one year RERIN—FA 38,353 26,815
The bank borrowings at 31 December 2022 carried interest at b"\fgiii‘i':ﬂ =+—8  #17fE

Hong Kong Prime Rate plus interest rate ranging from 0.25%
t0 0.5% (2021: 0.25% to 0.5%). The effective interest rate
on the bank borrowings (which is also equal to contracted
interest rate) is ranging from 5.25% to 6.125% per annum
(2021: 5.25% to 5.5% per annum). The bank overdrafts at 31
December 2022 carried interest at Hong Kong Prime Rate and
the effective interest rate is ranging from 5% to 5.625% per
annum (2021: 5% per annum). The Group’s bank borrowings
are denominated in HK$.

RILBEBZEEFENO0.25% E0.5%
E’JT‘J+Q+§ (— *ﬁz 0250/01
05%) - SRITERNERFE (MER
BHFE)NTEF525%£6.125%
TR —F HF525%FE55%) °
R-ZEBE-_—F+-_A=+—H  R175
TIEEAREENEFTE  BERFEHEX
NF5%E5625% (- T = —F : FF
E5%) o REBMRITERANETLAE
{7 o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 HE-T-—F+-A=+—HILEE

21. BANK BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2022, the bank borrowings were secured
by a corporate guarantee of HK$57,971,000 as issued
by the Company (2021: HK$57,971,000), by personal
guarantee of a director, Mr. Chung of HK$30,000,000 (2021:
HK$30,000,000) and a former shareholder of HK$10,000,000
(2021: HK$10,000,000).

Analysis of the amounts due based on scheduled payment
dates set out in the loan agreements (ignoring the effect of any
repayment on demand clause) is as follows:

21.

RAITER (&)

R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H 17
FEARRE AR R RFERS7,971,000
BT (T = —4%F 57,971,000/ 7T)
= H48 5 A W E A $E£R 30,000,000 7% T
— T~ — 4% :30,000,000/7T) RAT{E
fi% 5 A& & A #& 4% 10,000,000 7T (==
——4% :10,000,000/%870) {EILIF ©

BEERBHTRAHOTEENFKBEH (2
AR EREZREROTE) R
BEHHMWT

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F =ER = —GE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHIT
Within one year —FR 38,353 22,942
1 to 2 years 1224 = 3,873

38,353 26,815
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

0]

Share capital (i)

The movements in the Company’s authorised and issued

V&N

22. BAK #E

RARHDEE KB #ITE BRI

ordinary share capital are as follows: ey ¢
Nominal value Number
per share of shares Total
BREE RAEE @t
HK$'000
FTET
Authorised: HE
At 1 January 2021 and RZZZ—5-A—-AK
31 December 2021 “E-—F+-R HK$0.01
=+—H 0.0 100,000,000,000 1,000,000
Effect of share consolidation (Note ) BRINA G E (ff:b) HK$0.03
0.03% 7T (75,000,000,000) -
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—%+=R HK$0.04
=+—H 0.0478 7T 25,000,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: ERTRAR:
At 1 January 2021 RZEZ—45—H—H HK$0.01
0.017%7T 574,000,000 5,740
Issue of shares (Note a) BITRG (Hita) HK$0.01
00147 75,000,000 750
At 31 December 2021 R-ZE-—F HK$0.01
+-A=+-8 00177 649,000,000 6,490
Effect of share consolidation (Note ) BR1AE B9 2 (fifib) HK$0.03
0.03% 7T (486,750,000) -
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—&+-R HK$0.04
Sqr= 0.047E 7T 162,250,000 6,490
Notes: Wiz

(a) On 19 November 2021, the Company issued 75,000,000
ordinary shares by way of placing (the “Placing”), at a
placing price of HK$0.144 per share. The net proceeds
from the Placing after deducting of related expenses were
HK$10,152,000 and were used as additional general working
capital. These shares rank pari passu with all existing shares in
all respects.

(b) On 21 January 2022, every four (4) issued and unissued
existing shares of the Company of par value of HK$0.01 each
were consolidated into one (1) consolidated share of par value
of HK$0.04 each.

RZE-_—F+—AF+AhB XK
A @ LABE & 75 = & 775,000,000
Bk ((BBE]) REEAET
B20.144 770 - RINBRABRAR 2 12
K BC & BT1S FIEF 585 10,152,000
B WHRERIN—REBEES -
ZEBRMRETEEBBRNHZ
BRSHAL

RZFZZF—A=+—RHA &
AREFMNAGRFREEOET
MEBRTRABITEAERNEH
AB—(BRERAEEMBILNA
BERR 1D o
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22. SHARE CAPITAL AND RESERVES

(CONTINUED)

(ii) Reserves
(a) Capital reserve

Capital reserve represents the waived dividends
declared and approved by the Company to the
shareholders in 2017, which are deemed as capital
contribution from shareholders and credited to the
capital reserve of the Company.

(b) Other reserve

Other reserve of the Group represented the
difference between the share capital of the
subsidiaries acquired pursuant to the reorganisation
as completed in December 2016 and the nominal
value of the share capital of the Company issued in
exchange thereof.

e

(a)

(b)

22. BAK fw e ()

BX#E

EARBEARANR-ZE
—tFRERE IR &AL ER
ek ARRERER
BROERNBEALFFARR

Afttf#E

AEBEMEEERER =
E-RFET-_ATEKHER
P Y5 58 B /B8 22 R O AR R AR
NAIFLAIAM E TR ITIRAR
E{EMNZR -

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 23. RIEFFIBHREE

AT RBEMBHERAENELTMENR

The following is the analysis of the deferred income tax assets

for financial reporting purposes: BEIN
At 31 December
R+=A=+—8H
2022 2021
—E-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHT

Deferred income tax assets EIEFTISTRE E 5,737 3,071
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX ASSETS 23.

(CONTINUED)

The following is an analysis of deferred income tax assets
(liabilities) recognised and their movements during the year:

EEFTSBEE (&)

AT BRFRERNELREHREE (A

B REZEBH D

Expected
credit loss
provision Tax losses Total
BHEE
BiERE REEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FHEL FET
At 1 January 2021 RZE-—F—A—H 367 - 367
(Charged) credited to consolidated (kBT ALREEMA
statement of comprehensive income Iz & (74) 2,778 2,704
At 31 December 2021 R-ZZE-—F
+=-A=+-~H 293 2,778 3,071
Credited to consolidated statement of &+ A
comprehensive income FEXHENEE 34 2,632 2,666
At 31 December 2022 R_B__F
—A=+—H 327 5,410 5,737

Despite the Group has suffered losses in the current period,
a deferred tax asset arising from the unused tax losses of
HK$21,032,000 (2021: HK$18,748,000) has been recognised
during the year in excess of the profits arising from the reversal
of existing taxable temporary differences. The unused tax losses
have no expiry date (2021: HK$6,992,000 may be carried
forward for three years from the year of incurring the loss).
The Group has concluded that the deferred tax asset will be
recoverable using the estimated future taxable income based
on the approved business plans and budgets. The Group is
expected to generate taxable income from 2023 onwards.

BEAEBRAANPHEEBEE  BRE
AT TEE 18 21,032,000 T (ZE = —
4 : 18,748,000 JT) 1M E £ R IE TR
BEE BERFRERBEKEERIE
EERMEB =B %A - KAHEE
B EEHBH(ZF=—%:6,992,000
BT HEABENFEREE=F) -
AEBSHEwm BEEEBREE
MEBTEREE @ FAMGEFTHRKE
RS T AWE - TR AEEE S =
T -FREARRTRES -
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24. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 24, REHEPMBEITA

At 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Financial assets BMKEE
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEK AT ENRBEE
— Trade receivables (Note 17) —B S EWRIE (KL 17) 32,856 36,605
— Other receivables and deposits —Efib U RIE IR S
(Note 17) (Htzt17) 1,323 1,291
— Pledged and restricted bank deposits —BEFRZRHERITER
(Note 18) (K7t 18) 9,242 15,258
— Cash and cash equivalents (Note 78) - kR EEY
(KtsE18) 12,047 10,653
55,468 63,807
Financial liabilities g =N
Financial liabilities at amortised cost REHEKAFTENTBEE
— Trade and retention payables — B SRS RE R ER
(Note 19) RE® (Hat19) 40,863 41,227
— Other payables (Note 20) — H b &~ /I (7% 20) 1,713 1,754
— Bank borrowings (Note 21) —IRITER(HaE21) 38,353 26,815
— Lease liabilities (Note 15) —MEBEMWZ15) 141 831

81,070 70,677




160 HEEETMNERLDT
—E_FFR

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
e MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. R RERMH
CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash flows used in operations (a) REFFARERE

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—-HLFE

2022 2021
—E_-__ —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FET
Cash flows used in operations BREFARESRE
Loss before tax M Fi R0 e 1E (13,815) (24,906)
Adjustments for: BATEIEFE -
Provision (Reversal) of impairment & 5 & W sk I8 R B 5 18
losses on trade receivables B (B E) 205 (425)
Impairment losses on contract BHREEREEE
assets 15 51
Depreciation of plant and W REEITE
equipment 284 407
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ~ {FHEZEE 727 812
Interest expense B 1,830 1,873
Interest income FLEWA (133) (165)
Operating loss before working EEESBHAINLELEEIE
capital changes (10,887) (22,353)
Increase in contract assets BHEEEM (5,133) (16,886)
Decrease in trade and other 5 REMEREIE  2E
receivables, deposits and R RIBR D
prepayments 3,728 35,543
(Decrease) Increase in trade and E o EMFELEMNRES
retention payables CRLA>) #8100 (331) 277
(Decrease) Increase in other Hib et sa M EsTE A
payables and accrued expenses ORk ) 180 (865) 316
Cash used in operations KEMARS (13,488) (3,103)
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25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. %8S REXRKH

CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities (b) FBELRERMETH
Year ended 31 December
BE+t-A=1+—HLEE
2022 2021
—==-= —EZ—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET T T
Additions to right-of-use assets REGAEEE
(Note 15) (K7 15) - 410
() Net debt reconciliation () EXFHEYER
At 31 December
R+=—HA=+—8
2022 2021
—E-—F ==
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents RekBELFEY 12,047 10,653
Bank borrowings — variable interest #2175 5k — 2 8| &
rate (28,798) (20,289)
Lease liabilities — fixed interest rate A& & & — & & FI=R (141) (881)

Net debt BEFR (16,892) (10,517)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—-ZT-—F+_-_A=+—BItFE

25. NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF 25. B8R R ERM
CASH FLOWS (CONTINUED) (&)

() Net debt reconciliation (Continued) () B FHEYER(E)

Liabilities from financing activities

BEZHAERE

Cash and
cash Bank Lease
equivalents borrowings liabilities Total
Rk
ReEEY RITEX HERE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FET TET AT
Net cash at 1 January 2021 RZEZ—F
—R—BZBR&%8E 18,718 (28,763) (1,273) (11,318)
Non-cash interest expenses FREFMERY - - (55) (55)
Addition from new leases REFHENRE - - 410) @10)
Cash flows RBenE (8,080) 8,474 857 1,251
Foreign exchange adjustments SN B 15 - - 15
Net debt at 31 December 2021 e
_+ Eba=tiv 10,653 (20,289) (881) (10,517)
Non-cash interest expenses FREFIERY - - (28) (28)
Cash flows RenE 1,344 (8,509) 766 (6,399)
Foreign exchange adjustments SN 3 50 - 2 52
Net debt at 31 December 2022 R-ZE-_—_%+_A

—t+-HZ&aEFHE 12,047 (28,798) (141) (16,892)
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26. CONTINGENCIES

26. ARAERE

At 31 December

R+=—A=+-—H
2022 2021
—==-= —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHTT
Performance bonds (Note a) EBHIRFER (Kita) 2,737 12,254
Corporate guarantee (Note b) EER B ED) 13,491 12,371

Notes:

(a)

Certain customers require the Group to procure performance
bonds to be provided by a bank in favour of them as security for
due performance and observance of the obligations under the
contracts. In procuring such performance bonds, the Group is usually
required to place a required amount of deposit with such bank. If
the Group fails to provide satisfactory services to the customers,
the customers are entitled to seek compensation from the bank for
the amount of financial losses incurred not exceeding the amount
of the performance bonds. The Group will then become liable
to compensate the bank accordingly. During the years ended 31
December 2022 and 2021, no call was made on any performance
bonds of the Group. Typically, the estimated consideration is not
constrained for revenue recognition.

At 31 December 2022, the Group provided corporate guarantee
amounted to approximately HK$13,491,000 (2021: HK$12,371,000)
to one customer as an indemnity for three construction contracts
(2021: two). During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
no corporate guarantee was being enforced. Typically, the estimated
consideration is not constrained for revenue recognition.

ER

(a)

(b)

ETEPERAEELRHRITIRMUR
ERZImAZBORE EREIBET
DETAEHNETERZER ELXHE
HRORERN AEERTTERNEH
BITERN—ERTLEZIER - HASE
EReEMNEFREAZENRE  AES
EREGMEEMEERSBEREITSK
BE BTRBBHNRESE - RE &K
SEEAYHBITELRERE - REE
T FRZBEZ—F+=ZA=1—+
BIEFE BEENAEENEMAELD
RES£ - —MME  HARETZ RS
TERBR ] o

R_E-_—_F+_A=+—8 A%£H
m— &% P4t ¥ &R 13,491,000

BT (ZF=—%:12,371,0007T) °
ERB=NREEHN (ZE=—F : WMD)
WRE BE-_T-_—_FR-_FT=-_—F

TZA=+—HLEE"
ERDRER — KT S
F U HETRIR B o

3 4838 1 9 17
fE R RER
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27.

28.

LITIGATION

In March 2022, a claim was submitted by a subcontractor of
the Group in Macau claiming the allegedly due and unpaid
balance of subcontracting fees against a subsidiary of the
Group in Macau for a sum of approximately MOP1,884,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$1,830,000). At 31 December
2022 and 2021, approximately MOP403,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$392,000) has already been recognised as
“Retention payables”. Consulted the legal advice from an
independent legal counsel, the management of the Group
are of the opinion that the maximum liability of the Group
will likely be the total amount of claim. Accordingly, the
Group further recognised the remaining subcontracting fees
as cost of sales of approximately MOP1,481,000 (equivalent
to approximately HK$1,438,000) in profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2022.

Subsequent to 31 December 2022 and up to the date of
approving these consolidated financial statements, the litigation
is still in process and the court hearing date is still pending.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURES

Compensation of key management personnel

Key management personnel are deemed to be the members of
the board of directors and senior management of the Company
who have the responsibility for the planning and controlling
the activities of the Group. The remuneration of directors and
the senior management during the year is as follows:

27.

28.

Ei

RZEZ—F=F AEBEMNBRFNHS
BEmAEEN—FRFHEB A RRD
RE REBEBEIBRTNSBEHEE

#71,884,000 8 FI% (FAZ 7249 1,830,000
BIL) RE-_—_FR_T-—F
+—H*+ B - #7403,000;8FI# (8

LR 49392,0008 L) EER A EMR
.iJ ° yzﬁm:l u@?ﬁi/‘}@%ﬁ?ﬁﬁﬁ/ﬁfiﬁ
/E_, Z’KE. EEJENL,/E’!Z'SE.E’]E’KE
FRAIEARERT - Al - XEER
BHE-_Z-_—F+-_A=+—RI-&EE
E—TBRGBIBRERRBBEERELY
1,481,000 F9 % (4855 7 491,438,000
BIT) °

R-FB-_—_F+-_A=1+—BZEEE
ERFHEAMBHRRELZB - FAD
TR - ERABDKE -

A 5 1 B
TEEEA S

IBERABBRRARRESTENRR
REREKE REBERS REHIAK
SENES EFRSRAEEERFA
T

Year ended 31 December

BE+-A=t—HLFE

2022 2021

—=E_-— —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

F&ET FAET

Salaries and other benefits FrehEMET 8,082 6,636

Discretionary bonus @’] TBIEAL 1,025 1,471
Contribution to retirement benefits RKEF T B R

scheme 72 83

9,179 8,190
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29. PARTICULARS OF SUBSIDIARIES OF THE 29. QA E A R FETE
COMPANY
The Company has direct and indirect equity interests in the ARRRATHEB AR RS B REE
following subsidiaries: &4 -
Issued and
fully paid share
Place and date of Principal place  capital/quota Equity interest
Name of subsidiaries incorporation of business capital attributable to the Group Principal activities
RE A L3t IE BRTRMAR A58
MEAREE REH EXHE Bx/RERA FEfE g TEED
2022 2021
“E--F —E--F
Botop Engineering (Macau) Limited*  Macau, Macau MQP25,000 100% 100% Provision of supply, installation
5 March 2007 and fitting-out services of
MVAC system for buildings
in Macau
BRI TR (RM) - ABRRA" L & 25,000 275 7T 100% 100% WRMAETREKHER
I REBZGEHE Tk
=A%A REBRS
Wing Fung Engineering (H.K.) Limited®  Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$700 100% 100% Provision of supply, installation
25July 19% and fitting-out services of
MVAC system for buildings
in Hong Kong
RETR(FE)BRAR" R EE 7007 100% 100% REERETREKHER
—“NMARE REBZGOLE 78
tA=tHA REBRS
Wing Fung Investment Management ~ The BVI, Hong Kong Us$1 100% 100%  Investment holding
Limited® 22 September
2016
Wing Fung Investment Management ~ RBHFERES - FA E 100% 100% RERK
Limited® NS
AAZTZH
Wing Fung Enterprises Asia Limited”  Hong Kong, Hong Kong HK$1 100% - Trading of construction
19 December materials
2022
RLEXTHERARA &E &b 18T 100% - BEEREMH
TZATHE
* Subsidiary indirectly held by the Company and is the subsidiary of E RARFEERBENNRE QT I AWing
Wing Fung Investment Management Limited Fung Investment Management Limited &
Y= ING
# Subsidiaries directly held by the Company L RRBEEFEHHRE QA
All of the above subsidiaries are limited liability companies. e LB AR ABRAR - RA
None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities during FEINFHEB  ZEWB ARG EE

the year or at the end of the year. THERESFES
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30. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 30. A<D B BN &R

THE COMPANY

Pursuant to the disclosure requirements of the CO (Cap. 622), BIEAEED (E622F) W BERT

the statement of financial position of the Company and the AT MR ER EEFEEEBES
movements in its reserves is set out below: R
2022 2021
—=E=E-= —E -
Notes HK$°000 HK$"000
&I BT
Non-current assets FRBEE
Investments in subsidiaries NN NGIE RS 37,966 37,966
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 521
Amount due from subsidiaries JE UL B B A Bl Fk IR (a) 6,124 6,614
44,090 45,101
Current assets REEE
Other receivables, deposits and e W kIR
prepayments e RIEFRIA 1,459 1,512
Cash and cash equivalents RekReFEY 285 888
1,744 2,400
Total assets EEHE 45,834 47,501
Non-current liabilities FkRBEE
Amount due to a subsidiary &t — R BT B A B Fk A (b) 10,506 5,918
10,506 5,918
Current liabilities REAE
Other payables and accrued H Al e 5RIR K
expenses BT E A 1,742 1,914
Lease liabilities HEaE - 536
1,742 2,450
Total liabilities BEHEE 12,248 8,368
Net assets EEFE 33,586 39,133
Equity iy
Share capital [N 22() 6,490 6,490
Reserves G () 27,096 32,643
Total equity mER 33,586 39,133

AR BERRREREFER _T-=4
AT LEERERTIREANT

This statement of financial position was approved and
authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on 27 March

ATREFEE:
2023 and are signed on its behalf by: =
Chung Chi Keung Lai Suk Fan ExR Bl
Director Director EE 3
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THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Notes:

(a)

(9

30. XD BB BRI E (F)

M et
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is expected to (a) ZHRBEAERE Tt BEXTERER
be recovered after twelve months from the end of the reporting WK E - ZEARYKE -
period.
The amount is unsecured, non-interest bearing and is expected (b) ZRBEAERF - TR B TEHBER
to be repaid after twelve months from the end of the reporting MEKREH T ZEAREE -
period.
The movements in the Company’s reserves are as follow: (0) ARBEBOEEMT ¢
Share Capital Accumulated
premium reserve losses Total
BRGEE BEREE AZitEE et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FHET FHET FHT
At 1 January 2021 WZEZ—F—H—H 41,147 11,676 (22,787) 30,036
Loss for the year and total ~ FREERFANEZEH
comprehensive expenses MR
for the year - - (6,795) (6,795)
Issue of shares upon placing B & % ) BF 2277k (0
of shares 10,050 - - 10,050
Transaction costs incurred in SAERERDEENRZ S
connection with placing [BEZS
of shares (648) - - (648)
At 31 December 2021 and RZ=T=—F+=A
1 January 2022 =t+—BRZZT=Z
#—HA—H 50,549 11,676 (29,582) 32,643
Loss for the year and total ~ FWEERFANEZEFH
comprehensive expenses MR
for the year - - (5,547) (5.547)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZTE-_—F
+ZA=+—H 50,549 11,676 (35,129) 27,096
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MBHE

For the five years ended 31 December 2018, 2019, 2020, 2021 and 2022 EHZE-ZT—N\E ZT—NF ZT-ZTF —_F-—ER-T-__F+-_A=+-HIREFE

RESULTS 4

For the year ended 31 December

BE+T-ZA=+—HLEE

2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
—E_—f T Z2-TF —T-NEF ZE-N\F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

Consolidated results mEXE TET FET FHT FET FET
Revenue g 184,020 174,824 221,225 190,486 200,635
Gross profit (loss) EH(EH) 486 (7,220) 41,664 45,244 38,334
(Loss) Profit before BrETS AT (E18)
income tax gl (13,815) (24,906) 25,712 26,171 13,039
(Loss) Profit for the year & R (J&518) & 7 (11,199) (21,823) 22,571 21,311 10,140
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
At 31 December
WR+=—HA=+—H
2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
R —F-F ZT-TF —FE-NF ZFT)N\F
Consolidated assets HEBER HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
and liabilities =K FH&T FET FAET FAET FETT
Total assets BB E 186,244 188,110 216,618 140,739 130,598
Total liabilities BEE (84,618) (75,035) (91,828) (38,615) (49,944)

Net assets BEFE 101,626 113,075 124,790 102,124 80,654






